
TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE  
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

Site Walk  
The Exeter Conservation Commission will be conducting a site walk on  

Tuesday November 12th, 2024 at 8:00 AM meeting at the Administrative Building, 
5 White Oak Dr., Exeter to review site conditions prior to the meeting. 

Monthly Meeting 
The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet in the TOWN HALL at 9 Front Street*, Exeter 

on Tuesday, November 12th, 2024 at 7:00 P.M. 
Call to Order: 

1. Introduction of Members Present
2. Public Comment

Action Items: 
1. Wetland Conditional Use Permit and Wetland Dredge and Fill Applications for a new ±51,874 sf

supportive living health care center building at 5 White Oak Drive, Tax Map 97, Lot 23 (Erik
Saari, Altus).

2. Expenditure Requests:
a. ESRLAC Volunteer Annual Dues - $200

3. Committee Reports
a. Property Management
b. Outreach Events

i. Kyle Hike Challenge
ii. Sunrise Event at Raynes 11/23 Set Start Time - 6:46am sunrise. Keith/Nick

c. Other Committee Reports
i. NHACC Annual Meeting

ii. Pumpkin Composting at Laney and Lu with SAC, Nov 10th 9-11am
iii. NHSaves ButtonUp Workshop at Exeter Library w/ EC, Nov 19th 6-7:30pm
iv. Window Dressers Window Insert Ordering Deadline – 11/30

4. Approval of Minutes: 10/8/24 Meeting
5. Correspondence

Other Business  
6. Next Meeting: 12/10/24, Submission Deadline 12/2/24

Dave Short   
Exeter Conservation Commission 
Posted November 8th, 2024 Exeter Town Website www.exeternh.gov and Town Office kiosk. 
* NOTE MEETING HAS BEEN MOVED TO THE TOWN HALL AT 9 FRONT STREET 11/12/24

http://www.exeternh.gov/
http://www.exeternh.gov/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85475228740
https://www.exeternh.gov/townmanager/virtual-town-meetings
kmurphy
Highlight

kmurphy
Highlight



TOWN OF EXETER  
PLANNING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

Date: November 8th, 2024  
To: Conservation Commission Board Members  
From: Kristen Murphy, Conservation & Sustainability Planner 
Subject: November 12th, Meeting  

NOTE:  A site walk is scheduled at 8 AM prior to the meeting (5 White Oak Drive) see agenda. 

1. Riverwoods Wetland CUP and State Wetland Application
The packet includes both a wetland conditional use permit and a state wetland dredge and fill
application.  The applicant attended TRC on 10/31.  The application had addressed earlier comments
from the town’s consultant engineer and no substantial additional comments remained.  I have
included my TRC comments in your package for reference. The applicant is scheduled to go before
the Planning Board on 11/21.

With regard to mitigation, the applicant proposes an ARM in lieu fee and 3.73 acres of conservation
deed restricted land abutting the SELT-held conservation easement around the Woods campus.
Following the TRC, Erik Saari (Altus) contacted me and discussed the potential culvert replacement
project I mentioned during the TRC meeting.  I committed to look into the Tamarind Way culverts as
potential alternatives.  After checking with Jay Perkins, Highway Superintendent, these are no longer
suitable for mitigation because they were recently replaced by the Town.

I do not have details on the conservation deed restriction language but would encourage you to
inquire and include agreed upon terms as a condition of your approval.

Suggested Motion:
State Wetland Dredge and Fill:  Send a memo to the State indicating: 
____ We have reviewed this application and have no objection to the application as proposed. 
____     We have reviewed this application and recommend that the application be 

 (approved)(denied) as noted below: 

Town Wetland Conditional Use Permit:  Send a memo to the Planning Board indicating: 
____ We have reviewed this application and have no objection to the application as proposed. 
____     We have reviewed this application and recommend that the application be 

 (approved)(denied)(tabled to a date certain) as noted below: 

2. Expenditure Requests

Suggested Motion:
____    Authorize the expenditure of $200 from Dues for the voluntary ESRLAC annual dues.

____  Authorize the expenditure of $XXx from the Conservation Land Administration for the Raynes
Event.



TOWN OF EXETER 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

Date:  October 31, 2024  
To:  Technical Review Committee 
From:  Kristen Murphy, Conservation & Sustainability Planner 
Subject: Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center, PB 24-16  
 

• I commend the effort and attention given to incorporating native plantings in the 
landscape plan for this project.  

• Given the amount of direct wetland and wetland buffer impact a natural resource plan 
seems warranted for this project (Site and Sub 7.12).  Recommend consulting and 
aligning with documents previously prepared for Riverwoods Ridge/Boulders 
developments.   

• Though a mitigation proposal is planned for this project, details were not provided in 
advance of the TRC.    

• I do not see impacts calculated for the relocation of the raised beds. Strongly recommend 
these not be located in a wetland/wetland buffer area to allow for restoration or enhanced 
plantings in order to meet minimization of impact criteria.  

• Use of fertilizer within the wetland buffers is prohibited.  A waiver may be required if 
fertilizer is necessary for new plantings.  

• Please confirm lighting is dark sky compliant (Site/Sub 9.20.4.3). 
• Revise sediment control note to require the use of natural jute for erosion protection.    
• Please specify listed species referenced in the wildlife notes on the cover. A dedicated 

sheet with photos of species with potential to enter the work area is common.  
• The wetland note indicates a January survey date.  Was there snow cover during the 

survey or marker location and what follow up efforts have been conducted to determine 
whether vernal pool habitat may be present?    
 

Wetland CUP 
• Condition 2 and 4:  There is limited detail provided in terms of alternative designs that 

were considered and eliminated to demonstrate this proposal meets this condition.  Has 
the applicant considered: eliminating the 18 parking spaces above town parking 
requirements, locating more stormwater treatment beneath the parking (gallery or porous 
pavement) to reduce disturbance footprint, replacing the outdoor patio with parking to 
locate needed parking outside of the wetland/buffer.  See comment above re: relocation 
of raised beds. 

• Condition 3:  The function/values report identifies wildlife habitat impacts for wetland E. 
Review of the ARM Mapper stream crossings does show the culvert Dave Sharples 
suggested as undersized (SADES 6458).  Enhancing the size of this culvert for greater 
hydraulic capacity and aquatic organism passage while adding wildlife crossing 
opportunities could be an important mitigation option to offset this loss.   

• Condition 6:  Though a buffer restoration area is identified on sheet C-11, it is not clear 
what restoration may entail.  Please provide details. In addition, there appears to be an 
opportunity to further enhance the habitat value through additional shrub plantings and 
elimination of seasonal mowing.  



Altus Project 5015 

SITE PLAN AND CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT APPLICATION 

FOR 

RiverWoods 
Supportive Living Health Center 

5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, New Hampshire 

Tax Map 97, Lot 23 

September 10, 2024 

Prepared For: 

RiverWoods Company at Exeter 
7 Riverwood Drive 
Exeter, NH  03833 

Prepared By: 

ALTUS ENGINEERING 
133 Court Street 

Portsmouth, NH  03801 
Phone:  (603) 433-2335 



Revised 07/2023-CUP 

Town of Exeter Planning Board Application 

Conditional Use Permit: Wetland Conservation Overlay District 
in accordance with Zoning Ordinance Article: 9.1 

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: 
1. Refer to the Land Use Board Meeting Schedule and Deadlines for Submission Requirements.
2. Plans Must Include:

Existing Conditions
a. Property Boundaries
b. Edge of Wetland and associated Buffer (Wetlands Conservation Overlay District – WCOD)

--Prime wetland: 100’  
--Vernal Pool (>200 SF): 75’ 
--Exemplary Wetland: 50’ 

--Very Poorly Drained: 50’ 
--Poorly Drained: 40’  
--Inland Stream: 25’ 

c. Structures, roads/access ways, parking, drainage systems, utilities, wells and wastewater disposal
systems and other site improvements

Proposed Conditions 
a. Edge of Wetlands and Wetland Buffers and distances to the following:

i. Edge of Disturbance
ii. Structures, roads/access ways, parking, drainage systems, utilities, wells and wastewater

disposal systems and other site improvements
b. Name and phone number of all individuals whose professional seal appears on the plan

3. If applicant and/or agent is not the owner, a letter of authorization must accompany this application
4. Supporting documents i.e. Letters from the Department of Environmental Services, Standard Dredge and

Fill Application and Photos of the property
5. A Town of Exeter Assessors list of names and mailing addresses of all abutters

Required Fees: 
  Planning Board Fee: $50.00   Abutter Fee: $10.00      Recording Fee (if applicable): $25.00 

The Planning Office must receive the completed application, plans and fees on the day indicated on the 
Planning Board Schedule of Deadlines and Public Hearings.   

APPLICANT Name: 
Address: 
Email Address: 
Phone: 

PROPOSAL Address: 
Tax Map #97   Lot# 23    Zoning District: R-1
Owner of Record: 

Person/Business 
performing work 
outlined in proposal 

Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 

Professional that 
delineated wetlands 

Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 

The Riverwoods Company, at Exeter, New Hampshire
7 Riverwoods Drive, Exeter, NH 03833

603-772-4700
7 Riverwoods Drive

same
Altus Engineering

133 Court Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801
603-433-2335
Gove Environmental Services

8 Continental Drive, Unit H, Exeter, NH 03833
603-778-0644



Revised 07/2023-CUP 

Town of Exeter 
Planning Board Application 

Conditional Use Permit: Wetland Conservation Overlay District 

Detailed Proposal including intent, project description, and use of property: (Use additional sheet as needed) 

Wetland Conservation Overlay District Impact (in square footage): 
Temporary Impact Wetland: (SQ FT.) 

   Prime Wetlands   ___________ 

   Exemplary Wetlands      ___________ 

   Vernal Pools (>200SF)     ___________ 

   VPD          ___________ 

   PD          ___________ 

  Inland Stream    ___________ 

Buffer: (SQ FT.)
  Prime Wetlands   ___________ 

 Exemplary Wetlands        ___________ 

 Vernal Pools (>200SF)   ___________ 

 VPD          ___________ 

  PD        ___________ 

  Inland Stream    ___________

Permanent Impact Wetland: 
   Prime Wetlands   ___________ 

   Exemplary Wetlands      ___________ 

   Vernal Pools (>200SF)   ___________ 

   VPD          ___________ 

   PD        ___________ 

  Inland Stream    ___________ 

Buffer: 
  Prime Wetlands   ___________ 

 Exemplary Wetlands        ___________ 

 Vernal Pools (>200SF)   ___________ 

 VPD          ___________ 

  PD        ___________ 

  Inland Stream    ___________

See letter of explanation for project details

Valued Customer
Typewritten Text
X			        19,453 sf

Valued Customer
Typewritten Text
X			       113,694 sf



Revised 07/2023-CUP 

9.1.6.B. Prior to issuance of a conditional use permit, the Planning Board shall conclude and make 
a part of the record, compliance with the following criteria: 

1. That the proposed use is permitted in the underlying zoning district;
2. No alternative design which does not impact a wetland or wetland buffer or which has less

detrimental impact on the wetland or wetland buffer is feasible;
3. A wetland scientist has provided an impact evaluation that includes the “functions and

values” of the wetland(s), an assessment of the potential project-related impacts and
concluded to the extent feasible, the proposed impact is not detrimental to the value and
function of the wetland(s) or the greater hydrologic system.

4. That the design, construction and maintenance of the proposed use will, to the extent feasible,
minimize detrimental impact on the wetland or wetland buffer;

5. That the proposed use will not create a hazard to individual or public health, safety and
welfare due to the loss of wetland, the contamination of groundwater, or other reasons;

6. The applicant may propose an increase in wetland buffers elsewhere on the site that
surround a wetland of equal or greater size, and of equal or greater functional value than the
impacted wetland

7. In cases where the proposed use is temporary or where construction activity disturbs areas
adjacent to the immediate use, the applicant has included a restoration proposal revegetating
any disturbed area within the buffer with the goal to restore the site as nearly as possible to
its original grade and condition following construction.

8. That all required permits shall be obtained from the New Hampshire Department of
Environmental Services Water Supply and Pollution Control Division under NH RSA §485-A:
17, the New Hampshire Wetlands Board under NH RSA §483-A, and the United States Army
Corps of Engineers under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.;

List any variances/special exceptions granted by Zoning Board of Adjustment including dates: 

Describe how the proposal meets conditions in Article 9.1.6.B of the Zoning Ordinance (attached for reference).  
Written justification for each criterion must be provided to be deemed administratively complete. 

see attached list

see attached



DATED RELIEF GRANTED
July 17, 1990 Special Exception for "Continuing Care Retirement Faciity" (the 

"Woods")
September 20, 1990 Amendment to condition of previous SE to increase  nursing home beds 

from 50 to 60
February 20, 1991 Special Exception to allow: chimney exceeding allowable height; 

ornamental towers exceeding allowable height; construction of bridge 
over poorly drained soils; construct a portion of the structure on poorly 
drained soils.

June 19, 1991 Amendment to condition of previous SE to permit a change in the 
location of the access road

August 6, 2007 Special Exception to permit "Elderly Congregate Care Facility (the 
"Ridge")

April 17, 2008 Special Exception to permit "Elderly Congregate Care Facility (the 
"Boulders")

February 18, 2011 Special Exception to permit "Elderly Congregate Care Facility (Admin 
Building)

July 25, 2011
Amendment to Feb. 2011 Special Exception for slight increase in total 
square footage of Admin Building

August 22, 2011
Special Exception to permit the construction of an outdoor park and 
recreation area as an accessory use

RIVERWOODS
SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS OR VARIANCES BY THE ZBA



   

Civil 
Site Planning 

Environmental 
Engineering 

133 Court Street 
Portsmouth, NH 
03801-4413 

 

Tel:  (603) 433-2335       E-mail: Altus@altus-eng.com 

 

September 10, 2024 
 
 
Dave Sharples, Town Planner 
Planning Department, Town of Exeter 
10 Front Street 
Exeter, NH  03833 
 
 
Re: Conditional Use Permit Application 

RiverWoods Supportive Living Health Center 
 Tax Map 97, Lot 23 
 5 White Oak Drive 
 Exeter, New Hampshire 
 Altus Project No. 5015 
  
 
Dear Mr. Sharples, 
 
Pursuant to our Conditional Use Permit Application for the above referenced project, we 
respectfully submit the following to address the criteria listed under Section 9.1.6.B of the Zoning 
Ordinance: 
 

1. The proposed use is an elderly congregate care facility which was originally permitted in 
the R-1 zone by special exception. 
 

2. After exploring numerous concepts, any layout for a similar development program was 
found to impact the 100’ perimeter buffer.  A previous variance request for relief from this 
regulation was denied by the Zoning Board.  However, we have tailored the design to 
minimize impacts to the wetland and wetland buffer to the greatest degree possible.    

 
3. Gove Environmental Services has conducted a full functions and values assessment which 

will be included in the forthcoming wetlands which is attached to this application. 
 

4. The design incorporates retaining walls and steep slopes where possible in order to 
minimize wetland and buffer impacts. 

 
5. As designed, the project will not present any hazard to public health, safety or welfare.  The 

proposed stormwater system will provide for appropriate treatment of runoff prior to 
discharging it to the surrounding wetland system as well as allow for groundwater 
recharge.   

 
6. Expanded wetland buffers are not included in the proposal due to the fact that there is no 

space to expand them in this vicinity.  In addition, the remainder of the site is either already 



     
ALTUS ENGINEERING                   5015 – RiverWoods HC - CUP 
September 10, 2024   Page 2 of 2 

developed, subject to the 100’ perimeter buffer, or already in conservation or some other 
form of easement.  However, approximately 11% of the buffer impact is for restoration 
purposes where an existing house, driveway and septic system are being removed.  
Additional mitigation for the project’s wetland impacts will be included in the forthcoming 
wetlands permit application. 

 
7. No temporary impacts are included in the proposal.  However, the planned erosion control 

measures will provide for erosion and sediment control for the duration of the project.   
 

8. Applications for the required NHDES permits are currently being prepared.  We would 
expect that receipt of them would be a condition of Planning Board approval. 

 
 
Please feel free to contact me directly if you have any questions or require any additional 
documentation.  Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
  
ALTUS ENGINEERING 

   
Erik B. Saari  
Vice President  
 
ebs/5015-LTR-CUP-091024 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

Civil 
Site Planning 

Environmental 
Engineering 

133 Court Street 
Portsmouth, NH 
03801-4413 

 

Tel:  (603) 433-2335       E-mail: Altus@altus-eng.com 

 

November 1, 2024 
 
 
Dave Sharples, Town Planner 
Planning Department, Town of Exeter 
10 Front Street 
Exeter, NH  03833 
 
 
Re: Conditional Use Permit Application 

RiverWoods Supportive Living Health Center 
 Tax Map 97, Lot 23 
 5 White Oak Drive 
 Exeter, New Hampshire 
 Altus Project No. 5015 
  
 
Dear Mr. Sharples: 
 

As you know, we submitted a Conditional Use Permit application on September 10, 2024 
which is scheduled to be reviewed by the Conservation Commission on November 12.  Since our 
original submittal, the design has altered somewhat, therefore please accept these revised 
comments regarding our compliance with the criteria listed under Article 9, Section 9.1.6.B of the 
Exeter Zoning Ordinance.  These revised materials supersede those in the original submission.   
 
Compliance with Criteria of Zoning Ordinance 
 

1. The proposed use of a centralized health center and associated parking for an elderly 
congregate care facility is permitted in the underlying zoning district since it will occur on 
a property which was granted a special exception for the same. 

 
2. We have found no feasible alternative design which does not impact the wetland or wetland 

buffer or which would minimize such impact on the wetland or wetland buffer.  
 

The design of the centralized health center has been constrained from the start by the fact 
that while RiverWoods owns more than 200 acres of property, very little of that is available 
for the proposed improvements due to the fact that there are conservation restrictions on 
large portions of it.  Similarly, the existence of a gas line easement also constrains the site.  
Finally, any land which is not already subject to conservation restrictions or other 
easements is encumbered by a buffer at the perimeter of the entire property as required the 
by the Exeter Zoning Ordinance. 
 
In addition to the external factors constraining the site, the design also has to account for 
the underlying purpose of the use and the size of the building required to effectuate this 



     
ALTUS ENGINEERING                   5015 – RiverWoods HC - CUP 
November 1, 2024   Page 2 of 3 

purpose.  Specifically, the objective of the centralized health care facility is not only to 
consolidate services currently spread out over three campuses, but also to provide 
additional services which meet today’s industry standards including memory care which is 
not currently offered at RiverWoods.  These factors combined mean that the facility needs 
to be sized properly to be able to achieve these goals.  
 
As a result of these external constraints and the need for a building sized as shown to 
implement the goals of a central facility, the only location available for the proposed health 
center is the that shown proposed on the plan.  

 
3. The wetland report from Gove Environmental Services provides evidence showing the 

functions and values of the wetlands in the area to be developed and shows the impacts to 
such wetlands.  The report also concludes that to the extent feasible, the proposed 
development is not detrimental to the function and value of the wetlands or the greater 
hydrologic system.  Of particular note is that the wetlands in the area of development are 
generally of lower value than that of other wetlands on the property (See Section I. IV of 
Major Impact Dredge and Fill Application, hereinafter “Wetlands Application”; Section 5, 
Written Narrative; Section 5, Relative Function and Value of Wetlands Delineation Report, 
Page 2 of 2, copies of which are enclosed). 
 

4. The design and construction of the proposed improvements will to the extent feasible be 
accomplished in a manner so as to minimize detrimental impact to the wetland and wetland 
buffer.  Where possible, the plans utilize retaining walls and steep slopes to emphasize 
vertical development and reduce the wetland or wetland buffer area that would otherwise 
be needed.  Reducing the amount of land area needed means that the detrimental impact to 
the wetland of wetland buffer will be minimized.  Further, we intend to use bioretention 
pond (aka raingardens) as part of the design to appropriately treat stormwater to improve 
the quality of the runoff.   
 

5. The proposed development of a centralized health care center as designed will not create a 
hazard to individuals or to the public health, safety or welfare by loss of wetlands because, 
as noted in the wetland report , the function and value of the subject wetlands is generally 
of lower value than other wetlands on the property and, to the extent that any of the 
wetlands do have higher value, then the loss of such wetlands will  not result in a hazard to 
individuals or to the public health safety or welfare because we are minimizing stormwater 
peak rates and thus minimizing the risk of flooding.  Additionally, for the stormwater that 
does leave the property, no hazard will be created as it will be properly treated in 
accordance with State and local regulations.  
 

6. The applicant is not proposing an increase in wetland buffers elsewhere on the site as the 
remainder of it is already developed or protected by existing conservation restrictions.  
Notwithstanding the applicant’s inability to provide expanded buffers, the applicant does 
propose that a portion of the buffer impact be used for restoration purposes where an 
existing house, driveway and septic system are being removed.  Moreover, the applicant is 
making a contribution to the States Aquatic Resources Mitigation (ARM) fund and placing 
3.73 acres of land into conservation restriction status and which will offset the 2.61 acres 
of wetland buffer to be disturbed.  The proposed area to be conserved is adjacent to an 



     
ALTUS ENGINEERING                   5015 – RiverWoods HC - CUP 
November 1, 2024   Page 3 of 3 

existing conservation easement held by SELT and the acreage will consist of both upland 
and wetland.    
 

7. Only a small 84 sf section of temporary wetland impact is proposed in association with the 
removal of a driveway culvert in the buffer restoration area.  There are no other temporary 
impacts included in the proposal.  However, the planned erosion control measures will 
provide for erosion and sediment control for the duration of the project.   
 

8. The Wetlands Application has been submitted and we expect that the NHDES Alteration 
of Terrain and Sewer Discharge permits will be filed in the coming weeks.  

 
 
Please feel free to contact me directly if you have any questions or require any additional 
documentation.  Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
  
ALTUS ENGINEERING 

   
Erik B. Saari  
Vice President  
 
ebs/5015.01e-LTR-CUP-110124 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
GOVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC 

 
September 9, 2024 
 
Erik Saari 
Altus Engineering, Inc. 
133 Court Street 
Portsmouth, NH  03801 
 
Subject: Wetland Delineation & Function-Value Report 
 Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 
 5 White Oak Drive 
 Exeter, NH  
 
Dear Mr. Saari: 
 
This wetland report is being submitted in connection with the proposed development of a Supportive Living 
Health Center at 5 White Oak Drive on the Riverwoods campus in Exeter, NH.  This report documents the 
delineation and functional assessment of wetland resources in the vicinity of the proposed work as well as an 
evaluation of the proposed work within the context Section 9.1 of the Exeter Zoning Ordinance (Wetland 
Conservation District). 
 
WETLAND DELINEATION 
 
Resource areas on this property were delineated in January of 2023 by Brendan Quigley, NHCWS #249 
utilizing the following standards: 
 

1. Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Northcentral and 
Northeast Region, (Version 2.0) January 2012, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 

2. Field Indicators of Hydric Soils in the United States, A Guide for Identifying and Delineating 
Hydric Soils, Version 8.2. United States Department of Agriculture (2018). 

3. New England Hydric Soils Technical Committee. 2019 Version 4, Field Indicators for Identifying 
Hydric Soils in New England. New England Interstate Water Pollution Control Commission, 
Lowell, MA. 

4. National Wetland Plant List, Version 3.2 (2016). 
 
Wetland boundaries were surveyed by James Vera & Associates, Inc. and are depicted on the plans submitted 
separately for approvals.  The identified wetland areas are depicted on the attached figure and have been given 
unique designations for the purpose of discussion.  Several photos of the wetlands have also been included.  
Five (5) areas of wetland were identified in the project area: 
 
Wetlands A, B, C, and D  
 
These four areas consist of three small pockets of wetland and a narrow extension of a larger wetland system 
associated with Scamen Brook, east of the Site.  These areas lie in close proximity to the existing 
administration building, White Oak Drive, and related developed areas.  They are largely isolated from one 
another but are connected via small culverts and drain east toward Scamen Brook.  All four areas are 
predominantly forested wetland dominated by red maple, and sensitive fern but are densely vegetated with 
invasive woody species such as common and glossy buckthorn, oriental bittersweet, bush honeysuckle, and 
autumn olive.  Generally, this type of growth is characteristic of long fallow fields and areas around old farms 
 



Wetland Delineation & Function-Value Report 
 Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 September 9, 2024—Page 2 
 

 

 

Wetland E 
 
Wetland E is a more natural forested wetland, also dominated by red maple, that constitutes the headwaters of 
Scamen Brook.  The main body of the wetland follows the west to east drainage path of Scamen Brook which 
is carried under White Oak Drive by a pair of 18” culverts.   A portion of this wetland is supported by hillside 
seep hydrology and extends up the hill south of the wetland and toward the proposed project. 
 
Function &Value Assessment 
 
A wetland function and value assessment was conducted using the US Army Corps Highway 
Methodology guidelines.  Functions are self-sustaining properties of wetlands, which exist in the absence 
of human involvement.  Values refers to the benefits gained by society from a given wetland or ecosystem 
and their inherent functions.  Functions and values identified as “primary” have been determined to be 
significant features of the wetland being evaluated.  An important distinction is that the primary functions 
and values of a particular wetland does not necessarily indicate the wetland supports them at a significant 
level in comparison to other wetlands in the region or even near the site.   
 
The Highway Methodology considers 13 functions and values: 
 
1. Groundwater recharge/discharge:  This function considers the potential for a wetland to serve as a 

groundwater recharge and/or discharge area.  Recharge should relate to the potential for the wetland 
to contribute water to an aquifer.  Discharge should relate to the potential for the wetland to serve as 
an area where ground water can be discharged to the surface.   

2. Floodflow Alteration:  This function considers the effectiveness of the wetland in reducing flood 
damage by attenuation of floodwaters for prolonged periods following precipitation events.  

3. Fish and Shellfish Habitat:  This function considers the effectiveness of seasonal or permanent 
water bodies associated with the wetland in question for fish and shellfish habitat.  

4. Sediment/Toxicant/Pathogen Retention:  This function reduces or prevents degradation of water 
quality.  It relates to the effectiveness of the wetland as a trap for sediments, toxicants or pathogens. 

5. Nutrient Removal/Retention/Transformation:  This function relates to the effectiveness of the 
wetland to prevent adverse effects of excess nutrients entering aquifers or surface waters such as 
ponds, lakes, streams, rivers or estuaries. 

6. Production Export:  This function relates to the effectiveness of the wetland to produce food or 
usable products for human, or other living organisms. 

7. Sediment/Shoreline Stabilization: This function relates to the effectiveness of a wetland to stabilize 
stream banks and shorelines against erosion. 

8. Wildlife Habitat: This function considers the effectiveness of the wetland to provide habitat for 
various types and populations of animals typically associated with wetlands and the wetland edge.  
Both resident and or migrating species must be considered.  

9. Recreation: This value considers the effectiveness of the wetland and associated watercourses to 
provide recreational opportunities such as canoeing, boating, fishing, hunting and other active or 
passive recreational activities. Consumptive opportunities consume or diminish the plants, animals or 
other resources that are intrinsic to the wetland, whereas non-consumptive opportunities do not.  

10. Educational/Scientific Value: This value considers the effectiveness of the wetland as a site for an 
“outdoor classroom” or as a location for scientific study or research.  



Wetland Delineation & Function-Value Report 
 19 Continental Drive 
 June 9, 2022—Page 3 

 
 
 

8 Continental Dr Unit H, Exeter, NH 03833-7507 
Ph (603) 778 0644 / Fax (603) 778 0654 

www.gesinc.biz 
info@gesinc.biz 

11. Uniqueness/Heritage: This value relates to the effectiveness of the wetland or its associated water 
bodies to produce certain special values.  Special values may include such things as archeological 
sites, unusual aesthetic quality, historical events, or unique plants, animals, or geological features.  

12. Visual Quality/Aesthetics: This value relates to the visual and aesthetic qualities of the wetland. 
13. Threatened or Endangered Species Habitat: This value relates to the effectiveness of the wetland 

or associated water bodies to support threatened or endangered species. 
 
The functions and values identified in the wetlands are described in the following sections.  
 
Wetlands A, B, C, & D 
 
The principal functions of these four wetlands were determined to be Sediment/Toxicant/Pathogen 
Retention, Flood flow Alteration, and Wildlife Habitat.  The water quality and flood flow alteration 
functions are supported due to their location upstream of Scamen Brook and their restricted flow path. 
This restricted flow is mainly the result of segmentation but does enable treatment and flood attenuation 
by storing runoff and slowly releasing it downstream.  These functions are supported at a modest level 
due to the overall small size of the wetlands and limited development within their watershed.  The 
wetlands also support general Wildlife Habitat, mostly by way of dense cover favored by small mammals.  
Since these wetlands lack surface hydrology, they do not support wetland specific wildlife habitat and the 
proximity of development greatly limits their habitat value overall.   
  
Wetland E 
 
Sediment/Toxicant/Pathogen Retention and Wildlife Habitat were determined to be the principal 
functions of Wetland E.  These are derived from its more significant surface hydrology, closer association 
with Scamen Brook, and connectivity to larger forested wetland habitat to the west.   These attributes 
enhance the wildlife and Water quality function of the wetland in comparison to wetlands A, B, C, & D.  
Flood flow alteration was not considered a function of Wetland E since very little storage capacity was 
noted.  Groundwater discharge has also been considered as a secondary function as evidenced by the 
hillside seep along its southern slope.    
 
RELATION TO THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is being sought for proposed wetland and wetland buffer impacts within 
the Wetlands Conservation Overlay District associated with construction of the project.  This section 
provides an assessment of the impacts in accordance with Article 9.1.6.B.3 of the Wetland Conservation 
District CUP Criteria: 

A wetland scientist has provided an impact evaluation that includes the “functions and values” of the 
wetland(s), an assessment of the potential project-related impacts and concluded to the extent feasible, 
the proposed impact is not detrimental to the value and function of the wetland(s) or the greater 
hydrologic system. 

A functional evaluation of the wetlands is provided in the previous sections of this letter.  Direct impacts 
are proposed to Wetlands A, B, C, and D with wetland B, and C being impacted in their entirety.  The 
principal functions of the water quality and flood flow alteration supported in these areas should be 
adequately compensated for by the inclusion of comprehensive stormwater management and maintenance 



Wetland Delineation & Function-Value Report 
 Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 September 9, 2024—Page 4 
 

 

 

of the overall flow path.  These impacts should have no significant effect on Scamen Brook or the larger 
wetland system.    The modest wildlife habitat in these areas will be lost.  Considering the existing 
development and already segmented nature of this habitat, its loss should not have a significant effect on 
overall habitat.  Similar and better quality habitat is readily available in the areas west and east of the Site.  
The habitat value in the immediate vicinity will also be enhanced by restoration of buffer area to either 
side of Wetland D which currently consists of a driveway and maintenance/storage area adjacent to a 
residential structure.  

Wetland E will not be directly impacted, impacts in this location are to the buffer only.  A significant 
portion of this impact takes place within White Oak Drive and the immediately adjacent slopes.  If proper 
erosion control is employed during the work this will have no effect on the functions of the wetland. 
Buffer impacts are also proposed to construct a stormwater basin and a small portion of a parking lot.  
This impact will occur in naturally wooded buffer which provides vegetated area for water quality and 
additional screening for wildlife habitat.  The loss of forested buffer may result in a small loss of capacity 
for water quality function, but this will be mitigated by the addition of stormwater management with no 
significant overall effect on the larger wetland system.  The loss of wildlife habitat function resulting 
from these impacts will be very minimal.  The proposed stormwater basin and grading constitute a softer 
edge than paved surface of which there is only a small amount in the 75-foot buffer.  Habitat function loss 
is also mitigated by the fact that the buffer in this area originates from the hillside seep extension of the 
wetland.  The core wetland habitat to which the buffer provided screening lies well downslope. 

This concludes the wetland delineation and wetland functional assessment report.  If I can be of further 
assistance, please feel free to contact me at (603) 778-0644. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
   

 
Brendan Quigley, NHCWS 
Gove Environmental Services, Inc. 
  
Wetland Sketch 
Photos 





 Wetland Photos 
Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 1—Wetland A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 2—Trail between Wetlands A and B (A to right, B to the left) 

 



 Wetland Photos 
Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 3—Wetland B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 4—Driveway between Wetlands C and D (C to right, D to the left) 

 



 Wetland Photos 
Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 5—Wetland C 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 6—Wetland D 

 



 

              

 
Section 4 
 
USGS Map 
Aerial Photo 
Tax Map 
FIRM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Valued Customer
Callout
SITE



 

Valued Customer
Polygon

Valued Customer
Callout
SITE



Valued Customer
Polygon

Valued Customer
Callout
SITE



N
at
io
na
l F
lo
od
 H
az
ar
d 
La
ye
r 
F
IR
M
et
te

0
50
0

1,
00
0

1,
50
0

2,
00
0

25
0

F
ee
t

Ü

S
EE

 F
IS
 R
EP

O
R
T 
FO

R
 D
ET
A
IL
ED

 L
EG

EN
D
 A
N
D
 IN

D
EX

 M
A
P
 F
O
R
 F
IR
M
 P
A
N
EL

 L
AY

O
U
T

S
P
EC

IA
L 
FL
O
O
D

H
A
ZA

R
D
 A
R
EA

S

W
ith

ou
t 
B
as
e 
Fl
oo

d 
El
ev
at
io
n 
(B
FE

)
Zo

ne
 A
, V
, A

9
9

W
ith

 B
FE

 o
r 
D
ep

th
Zo

ne
 A
E,
 A
O
, A

H
, V

E,
 A
R

R
eg

ul
at
or
y 
Fl
oo

dw
ay

0
.2
%
 A
nn

ua
l C

ha
nc
e 
Fl
oo

d 
H
az
ar
d,
 A
re
as

of
 1
%
 a
nn

ua
l c
ha

nc
e 
flo

od
 w
ith

 a
ve
ra
ge

de
pt
h 
le
ss
 t
ha

n 
on

e 
fo
ot
 o
r 
w
ith

 d
ra
in
ag

e
ar
ea

s 
of
 le
ss
 t
ha

n 
on

e 
sq
ua

re
 m

ile
Zo

ne
 X

Fu
tu
re
 C
on

di
tio

ns
 1
%
 A
nn

ua
l

C
ha

nc
e 
Fl
oo

d 
H
az
ar
d

Zo
ne

 X

A
re
a 
w
ith

 R
ed

uc
ed

 F
lo
od

 R
is
k 
du

e 
to

Le
ve
e.
 S
ee

 N
ot
es
.Z

on
e 
X

A
re
a 
w
ith

 F
lo
od

 R
is
k 
du

e 
to
 L
ev
ee

Zo
ne

 D

N
O
 S
C
R
EE

N
A
re
a 
of
 M

in
im

al
 F
lo
od

 H
az
ar
d

Zo
ne

 X

A
re
a 
of
 U
nd

et
er
m
in
ed

 F
lo
od

 H
az
ar
d

Zo
ne

 D

C
ha

nn
el
, C

ul
ve
rt
, o
r 
S
to
rm

 S
ew

er

Le
ve
e,
 D
ik
e,
 o
r 
Fl
oo

dw
al
l

C
ro
ss
 S
ec
tio

ns
 w
ith

 1
%
 A
nn

ua
l C

ha
nc
e

17
.5

W
at
er
 S
ur
fa
ce
 E
le
va
tio

n
C
oa

st
al
 T
ra
ns
ec
t

C
oa

st
al
 T
ra
ns
ec
t 
B
as
el
in
e

P
ro
fil
e 
B
as
el
in
e

H
yd
ro
gr
ap

hi
c 
Fe
at
ur
e

B
as
e 
Fl
oo

d 
El
ev
at
io
n 
Li
ne

 (B
FE

)

Ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
LO

M
R
s

Li
m
it 
of
 S
tu
dy

Ju
ri
sd
ic
tio

n 
B
ou

nd
ar
y

D
ig
ita

l D
at
a 
A
va
ila

bl
e

N
o 
D
ig
ita

l D
at
a 
A
va
ila

bl
e

U
nm

ap
pe

d

Th
is
 m

ap
 c
om

pl
ie
s 
w
ith

 F
EM

A
's
 s
ta
nd

ar
ds
 fo

r 
th
e 
us
e 
of

di
gi
ta
l f
lo
od

 m
ap

s 
if 
it 
is
 n
ot
 v
oi
d 
as
 d
es
cr
ib
ed

 b
el
ow

.
Th

e 
ba

se
m
ap

 s
ho

w
n 
co
m
pl
ie
s 
w
ith

 F
EM

A
's
 b
as
em

ap
ac
cu
ra
cy
 s
ta
nd

ar
ds

Th
e 
flo

od
 h
az
ar
d 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
is
 d
er
iv
ed

 d
ir
ec
tly
 fr
om

 t
he

au
th
or
ita

tiv
e 
N
FH

L 
w
eb

 s
er
vi
ce
s 
pr
ov
id
ed

 b
y 
FE

M
A
. T
hi
s 
m
ap

w
as
 e
xp
or
te
d 
on

 9
/9

/2
0
24

 a
t 
1
:1
7
 P
M
  a

nd
 d
oe

s 
no

t
re
fle

ct
 c
ha

ng
es
 o
r 
am

en
dm

en
ts
 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 
to
 t
hi
s 
da

te
 a
nd

tim
e.
 T
he

 N
FH

L 
an

d 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
m
ay
 c
ha

ng
e 
or

be
co
m
e 
su
pe

rs
ed

ed
 b
y 
ne

w
 d
at
a 
ov
er
 t
im

e.

Th
is
 m

ap
 im

ag
e 
is
 v
oi
d 
if 
th
e 
on

e 
or
 m

or
e 
of
 t
he

 fo
llo
w
in
g 
m
ap

el
em

en
ts
 d
o 
no

t 
ap

pe
ar
: b

as
em

ap
 im

ag
er
y,
 fl
oo

d 
zo
ne

 la
be

ls
,

le
ge

nd
, s
ca
le
 b
ar
, m

ap
 c
re
at
io
n 
da

te
, c
om

m
un

ity
 id

en
tif
ie
rs
,

FI
R
M
 p
an

el
 n
um

be
r, 
an

d 
FI
R
M
 e
ff
ec
tiv
e 
da

te
. M

ap
 im

ag
es
 fo

r
un

m
ap

pe
d 
an

d 
un

m
od

er
ni
ze
d 
ar
ea

s 
ca
nn

ot
 b
e 
us
ed

 fo
r

re
gu

la
to
ry
 p
ur
po

se
s.

L
eg
en
d

O
TH

ER
 A
R
EA

S
 O
F

FL
O
O
D
 H
A
ZA

R
D

O
TH

ER
 A
R
EA

S

G
EN

ER
A
L

S
TR

U
C
TU

R
ES

O
TH

ER
FE

AT
U
R
ES

M
A
P
 P
A
N
EL

S

8B
20

.2

Th
e 
pi
n 
di
sp
la
ye
d 
on

 t
he

 m
ap

 is
 a
n 
ap

pr
ox
im

at
e

po
in
t 
se
le
ct
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
us
er
 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
re
pr
es
en

t
an

 a
ut
ho

ri
ta
tiv
e 
pr
op

er
ty
 lo
ca
tio

n.

1:
6,
00
0

70
°5
9'
18
"W

 4
2°
58
'2
3"
N

70
°5
8'
40
"W

 4
2°
57
'5
7"
N

B
as
em

ap
 Im

ag
er
y 
So

ur
ce
: U

SG
S 
N
at
io
na

l M
ap

 2
0
2
3

Valued Customer
Callout
SITE



 

              

 
Section 7 
 
Project Plans 
(under separate cover in hard copy) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























































Legend

MEP / SUPPORT

PARKING

SUPPORT
CIRCULATION

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

48,141 SF

PARKING

473 SF

MAINTENANCE

717 SF

STORAGE

624 SF

CENTRAL

SUPPLY

TRASH

SERVICE

ENTRY
POWER

CLEAN

LAUNDRY

705 SF

MEP

298 SF

MEP

PARKING

64 STALLS

STAIR

STAIR

ELEV

HEALTHCARE BUILDING INFO        

TOTAL BUILDING AREA = 173,893 SQFT
COMMONS = 42,499 SQ FT (337 SF/UNIT)
AL = 30,351 SQ FT (1084 SF/UNIT)
AL-2 = 34,845 SQ FT (645 SF/UNIT)
MS = 21,106 SQ FT (879 SF/UNIT)
SNF = 21,106 SQ FT (1055 SF/UNIT)
PARKING = 23,986 SQ FT

BUILDING FOOTPRINT = 51,558 SQ FT
LEASABLE AREA = 59,186 SQ FT

AL = 19,020; (5) 1.1 S, (14) 1.1 SD, (9) 2.2 D
AL-2 = 21,033
MS = 10,370
SNF = 8,763

18'-0" 24'-0" 72'-0" 25'-10" 18'-0"

1
8
'-
0

"
2
4
'-
0

"
5
4
'-
0

"
2
4
'-
0

"
1
8
'-
0

"

16'-0" 35'-0" 27'-0" 27'-0" 35'-0" 20'-4"

1
6
'-
0

"
2
7
'-
0

"
2
6
'-
0

"
2
6
'-
0

"
2
7
'-
0

"
1
6
'-
0

"

1
6
'-
0

"

28'-0" 28'-0" 28'-0" 28'-0" 21'-1"

28'-0" 28'-0" 28'-0" 28'-0" 17'-10"

5
'-
3
"

2
9
'-
0

"
2
8
'-
0

"
2
8
'-
0

"
2
1
'-
0

"
1
6
'-
0

"

2
8
'-
0

"
2
8
'-
0

"
2
8
'-
0

"
1
7
'-
1
1
"

1
6
'-
0

"

1/16" = 1'-0"
Exeter, New Hampshire

RiverWoods Exeter Health Center LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
JULY 2024

NORTH



MEMORY SUPPORT

HOUSEHOLD 2

12 UNITS

MEMORY SUPPORT

HOUSEHOLD 1

12 UNITS

Legend

AL 1 BED DELUXE

AL 1 BED STANDARD

AL 2 BED DELUXE

AL CIRCULATION

ASSISTED LIVING

COMMONS

COMMONS
CIRCULATION

MC CIRCULATION

MEMORY CARE

MEP / SUPPORT SUPPORT
CIRCULATION

ASSISTED LIVING 

14 UNITS

HEALTHCARE BUILDING INFO        

TOTAL BUILDING AREA = 173,893 SQFT
COMMONS = 42,499 SQ FT (337 SF/UNIT)
AL = 30,351 SQ FT (1084 SF/UNIT)
AL-2 = 34,845 SQ FT (645 SF/UNIT)
MS = 21,106 SQ FT (879 SF/UNIT)
SNF = 21,106 SQ FT (1055 SF/UNIT)
PARKING = 23,986 SQ FT

BUILDING FOOTPRINT = 51,558 SQ FT
LEASABLE AREA = 59,186 SQ FT

AL = 19,020; (5) 1.1 S, (14) 1.1 SD, (9) 2.2 D
AL-2 = 21,033
MS = 10,370
SNF = 8,763

5,179 SF

ASSISTED

LIVING

COURTYARD

3,611 SF

MEMORY

CARE

COURTYARD

1,475 SF

MULTIPURPOSE

ROOM

1,492 SF

BAR

382 SF

COUNTRY

STORE

346 SF

CARDS

883 SF

FITNESS/

EXERCISE

295 SF

LIVING

287 SF

SUNROOM

179 SF

SUNROOM

2,006 SF

KITCHEN

564 SF

BREAK

ROOM

158 SF

WORK

ROOM

383 SF

FOOD

PREP

229 SF

SITTING

478 SF

DINING

184 SF

SERVE

421 SF

DINING

229 SF

SITTING

353 SF

QUIET

757 SF

MULTI-PURPOSE

965 SF

ACTIVITY

RECEPTION

MAIL

TRASH OXY

MDF

STOR

VEST

1,255 SF

ATRIUM

OUTDOOR

STORAGE

208 SF

MUSIC

ELEV

LOBBY

SOILED
CLEAN

STAIR

TLT

NURSE MEDS

ELEC/ IT
LIFT

STORAGE

MOTHERS

ROOM

STAIR

292 SF

REC.

LOCKERS

MEN

JAN

WOMEN

IT

ELEC

STAIR

CHEF

OFFICE

FRONT

PORCH

STAIR

MEDSTLT

CLEAN SOILED

CPYTLT

MTG

SPA

STOR

78 SF

NURSE

LIFT

STOROFFICE

ELEC

LND

IT

CLEAN SOILED

HSKPNG

STR

OFFICE STOR

STOR

PCKG

HRBP

OFFICE

MS MGR

OFFICE

JAN
247 SF

READING

130 SF

SERVE

LINEN

NURSE MEDS

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

MS

STUDIO

51'

102'

102'

101'

32'

33'

188' TRAVEL 

DISTANCE TO DINING

213' TRAVEL 

DISTANCE TO BAR

5
'-
2
"

146'

105'

84'

81'

21'

1/16" = 1'-0"
Exeter, New Hampshire

RiverWoods Exeter Health Center FIRST FLOOR PLAN
JULY 2024

NORTH



SKILLED NURSING

20 UNITS

ASSISTED LIVING 

14 UNITS

Legend

AL 1 BED DELUXE

AL 1 BED STANDARD

AL 2 BED DELUXE

AL CIRCULATION

ASSISTED LIVING

BALCONY

COMMONS COMMONS
CIRCULATION

MEP / SUPPORT

SKILLED CIRCULATION

SKILLED NURSING

OPEN TO

BELOW

OPEN TO

BELOW

2,110 SF

AL-1

DINING
431 SF

PRIVATE

DINING

491 SF

LIBRARY

EXAM

179 SF

SUNROOM

295 SF

LIVING

286 SF

SUNROOM

447 SF

MULTIPURPOSE

482 SF

SALON

220 SF

MANI/

PEDI

138 SF

MSSG

134 SF

BARBER

803 SF

REHAB

ADL

340 SF

PRE

DINING

478 SF

SERVE

285 SF

FOOD

PREP

469 SF

FOOD

PREP

245 SF

SERVE

184 SF

RECEPT

793 SF

DINING

367 SF

MED

RECORDS

248 SF

SOCIAL

SERVICES

757 SF

MULTI-PURPOSE

LAUNDRY

353 SF

QUIET

744 SF

CARDIO /

FITNESS

CLEAN SOILED

STAIR

STR

SPA

MTG

TLT

LINENSTOR

ELEC
LIFT

OFFICE STOR

IT

CLEAN SOILED

STAIR
MENS

WOMENS

NTRTN

OXY TRASH

LOBBY

STR

STAIR

TLT

NURSE MEDS

ELEC/ IT

TLT

MIX

STAIR

STORAGE

?
SOILED

STOR

297 SF

BALCONY

MTNG

412 SF

CARDS

206 SF

QUIET

GUEST

SUITE

GUEST

SUITE

JAN

SPA

HEALTHCARE BUILDING INFO        

TOTAL BUILDING AREA = 173,893 SQFT
COMMONS = 42,499 SQ FT (337 SF/UNIT)
AL = 30,351 SQ FT (1084 SF/UNIT)
AL-2 = 34,845 SQ FT (645 SF/UNIT)
MS = 21,106 SQ FT (879 SF/UNIT)
SNF = 21,106 SQ FT (1055 SF/UNIT)
PARKING = 23,986 SQ FT

BUILDING FOOTPRINT = 51,558 SQ FT
LEASABLE AREA = 59,186 SQ FT

AL = 19,020; (5) 1.1 S, (14) 1.1 SD, (9) 2.2 D
AL-2 = 21,033
MS = 10,370
SNF = 8,763

965 SF

ACTIVITY

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO
SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

SNF

STUDIO

229 SF

SITTING

229 SF

SITTING

NURSE MEDS

NURSE MEDS

172 SF

BLCNY

448 SF

BLCNY

102'

102'

101'

32'

33'

83'

229' TRAVEL 

DISTANCE TO DINING

188' TRAVEL 

DISTANCE TO DINING

146'

105'

84'

95'

1/16" = 1'-0"
Exeter, New Hampshire

RiverWoods Exeter Health Center SECOND FLOOR PLAN
JULY 2024

NORTH



ASSISTED LIVING - 2

3 NEIGHBORHOODS

54 UNITS

Legend

AL2 - Neighborhood 1

AL2 - Neighborhood 2

AL2 - Neighborhood 3

AL CIRCULATION

ASSISTED LIVING

BALCONY

COMMONS COMMONS
CIRCULATION

MEP / SUPPORT SUPPORT
CIRCULATION

IT

ELEC

LIFT

CLEAN

SOILED

MEDS NURSE

TLT

TLT
CLEANSOILED

NURSE
MEDS LIFT

OXY TRASH

JAN

CLEAN SOILED

NURSE IT

ELEC

LND

LINEN

MTG

TLT

SPA

285 SF

FOOD

PREP

755 SF

TRAINING

160 SF

PCP

152 SF

NURSE ED

152 SF

ASSIST

DIRECT

192 SF

SCHEDULER

218 SF

DIRECT

HEALTH

179 SF

CONF

LIFE

MNGR

FLEX

OFFICE

LE

STORAGE

OFFICE

SUITE

330 SF

SITTING

521 SF

LIVING

140 SF

SITTING

516 SF

LIVING

269 SF

MEDITATION

724 SF

FITNESS

340 SF

PRE

DINING

227 SF

SERVE

619 SF

DINING

EXPANSION

1,586 SF

AL-2

DINING 1

381 SF

CARDS

999 SF

LIVING

313 SF

BREAK

363 SF

BALCONY

297 SF

BALCONY

ELEVLOBBY

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

STAIR

HEALTHCARE BUILDING INFO        

TOTAL BUILDING AREA = 173,893 SQFT
COMMONS = 42,499 SQ FT (337 SF/UNIT)
AL = 30,351 SQ FT (1084 SF/UNIT)
AL-2 = 34,845 SQ FT (645 SF/UNIT)
MS = 21,106 SQ FT (879 SF/UNIT)
SNF = 21,106 SQ FT (1055 SF/UNIT)
PARKING = 23,986 SQ FT

BUILDING FOOTPRINT = 51,558 SQ FT
LEASABLE AREA = 59,186 SQ FT

AL = 19,020; (5) 1.1 S, (14) 1.1 SD, (9) 2.2 D
AL-2 = 21,033
MS = 10,370
SNF = 8,763

173 SF

BLCNY

185 SF

SITTING

17'

92'

101'

29'

245' TRAVEL 

DISTANCE TO DINING

232' TRAVEL 

DISTANCE TO DINING

249' TRAVEL 

DISTANCE TO DINING

146'

105'

105'

146'

83'

1/16" = 1'-0"
Exeter, New Hampshire

RiverWoods Exeter Health Center THIRD FLOOR PLAN
JULY 2024

NORTH



SECOND FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE
111'-0"

THIRD FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE

122'-0"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
131'-0"

MAX HEIGHT
135'-0"

FIRST FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE
100'-0"

PARKING TOP OF CONCRETE
88'-0"

SECOND FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE
111'-0"

THIRD FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE
122'-0"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
131'-0"

MAX HEIGHT
135'-0"

FIRST FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE

100'-0"

PARKING TOP OF CONCRETE
88'-0"

1/8" = 1'-0"
Exeter, New Hampshire

RiverWoods Exeter Health Center EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
JULY 2024



SECOND FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE

111'-0"

THIRD FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE
122'-0"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
131'-0"

MAX HEIGHT
135'-0"

FIRST FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE
100'-0"

SECOND FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE
111'-0"

THIRD FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE
122'-0"

ROOF TRUSS BEARING
131'-0"

MAX HEIGHT
135'-0"

FIRST FLOOR TOP OF

CONCRETE
100'-0"

1/8" = 1'-0"
Exeter, New Hampshire

RiverWoods Exeter Health Center EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
JULY 2024



Exeter, New Hampshire

RiverWoods Exeter Health Center FRONT ENTRY
JULY 2024

NORTH



 

 GOVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 
. 
 

 
NH DES WETLANDS BUREAU 

MAJOR IMPACT 
DREDGE & FILL APPLICATION  

For 

RIVERWOODS EXETER  
SUPPORTIVE LIVING HEALTH CENTER  

 
5 White Oak Drive 

Exeter, NH 
 

October 2024 
 

 
 

 

Prepared By 
 
Gove Environmental Services, Inc. 
8 Continental Dr Bldg 2 Unit H, Exeter, NH  03833-7526 
Ph (603) 778 0644 / Fax (603) 778 0654 
info@gesinc.biz / www.gesinc.biz

mailto:info@gesinc.biz
http://www.gesinc.biz/


 

Table of Contents 
 
NH DES Standard Dredge and Fill Application Forms 
Standard Application Form 
Attachment A 
Avoidance and Minimization Narrative 
Waiver Request 
 
Figures 
USGS Locus Map 

Aerial Photo 

WPPT Results 

Overall Campus Figure 

 

Attachments  
 

Attachment A  Impact Area Photos 
Attachment B  Abutter Information 
Attachment C  Wetland Report & Functional Assessment 
Attachment D  ACOE Supplemental Information 

Secondary Impacts Checklist, SHPO Inquiry, IPaC Report  
 
Attachment E  New Hampshire Natural Heritage Inquiry 

 
Attachment F Site Plans (under separate cover) 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

NH DES Dredge & Fill Application Forms 



 

  
 

 
 

  
  

   
  

  

  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

    
      

   
      

     
     

       
     

     

       

 
  

     

 
 

 
    

    

     

     

     

  
 

                                 

    

NHDES-W-06-012 

STANDARD DREDGE AND FILL 
WETLANDS PERMIT APPLICATION 

Water Division / Land Resources Management 
Check the Status of your Application 

RSA/Rule: RSA 482-A/Env-Wt 100-900 

APPLICANT’S NAME: TOWN NAME: 

Administrative Administrative Administrative 

File No.: 

Check No.: 
Use 
Only 

Use 
Only 

Use 
Only Amount: 

Initials: 

A person may request a waiver of the requirements in Rules Env-Wt 100-900 to accommodate situations where strict 
adherence to the requirements would not be in the best interest of the public or the environment but is still in 
compliance with RSA 482-A. A person may also request a waiver of the standards for existing dwellings over water 
pursuant to RSA 482-A:26, III(b). For more information, please consult the Waiver Request Form. 

SECTION 1 - REQUIRED PLANNING FOR ALL PROJECTS (Env-Wt 306.05; RSA 482-A:3, I(d)(2)) 
Please use the Wetland Permit Planning Tool (WPPT), the Natural Heritage Bureau (NHB) DataCheck Tool, the Aquatic 
Restoration Mapper, or other sources to assist in identifying key features such as: Priority Resource Areas (PRAs), 
protected species or habitats, coastal areas, designated rivers, or designated prime wetlands. 

Has the required planning been completed? 

Does the property contain a PRA? If yes, provide the following information: 

• Does the project qualify for an Impact Classification Adjustment (e.g. NH Fish and Game
Department (NHFG) and NHB agreement for a classification downgrade) or a Project-Type
Exception (e.g. Maintenance or Statutory Permit-by-Notification (SPN) project)? See Env-Wt
407.02 and Env-Wt 407.04.

• Protected species or habitat?
o If yes, species or habitat name(s):
o NHB Project ID #:

• Bog?

• Floodplain wetland contiguous to a tier 3 or higher watercourse?

• Designated prime wetland or duly-established 100-foot buffer?

• Sand dune, tidal wetland, tidal water, or undeveloped tidal buffer zone?

Is the property within a Designated River corridor? If yes, provide the following information: 
• Name of Local River Management Advisory Committee (LAC):
• A copy of the application was sent to the LAC on Month: Day: Year: 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Yes No 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095 

des.nh.gov 
2023-09 Page 1 of 7 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
tel:6032712147
http://www.des.nh.gov/
https://www4.des.state.nh.us/lrmonestop/
https://onlineforms.nh.gov/?formtag=nhdes-w-06-083
https://nhdeswppt.unh.edu/
https://www4.des.state.nh.us/NHB-DataCheck/
https://nhdes.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=21173c9556be4c52bc20ea706e1c9f5a
https://nhdes.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=21173c9556be4c52bc20ea706e1c9f5a
https://www.des.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt341/files/documents/2020-01/wb-25.pdf
https://www.des.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt341/files/documents/2020-01/wb-20.pdf


 
 

  
 

 
 

 
    

    

        

     
 

     
        

 

 

  

  

   
  

   

NHDES-W-06-012 

For dredging projects, is the subject property contaminated? 
• If yes, list contaminant: 

Yes No 

Is there potential to impact impaired waters, class A waters, or outstanding resource waters? Yes No 

For stream crossing projects, provide watershed size (see WPPT or Stream Stats): 

Provide a description of the project and the purpose of the project, the need for the proposed impacts to jurisdictional 
areas, an outline of the scope of work to be performed, and whether impacts are temporary or permanent. 

ADDRESS: 

TOWN/CITY: 

TAX MAP/BLOCK/LOT/UNIT: 

US GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (USGS) TOPO MAP WATERBODY NAME: 
N/A 

(Optional) LATITUDE/LONGITUDE in decimal degrees (to five decimal places): 

SECTION  2 - PROJECT DESCRIPTION  (Env-Wt 311.04(i))  

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 

SECTION  3 - PROJECT  LOCATION  
Separate  wetland permit applications  must be submitted for each municipality  within which wetland impacts occur.  

29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095 
des.nh.gov 

2023-09 Page 2 of 7 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
tel:6032712147
http://www.des.nh.gov/
https://nhdeswppt.unh.edu/


 
 

  
 

 
 

  

 

      

  

    

  

   

  

 

      

  

    

  

  

  

      

  

    

  

NHDES-W-06-012 

SECTION  4 - APPLICANT (DESIRED PERMIT HOLDER)  INFORMATION (Env-Wt  311.04(a))  
       

NAME: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

TOWN/CITY: STATE: ZIP CODE: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

FAX: PHONE: 

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION:  By initialing here, I hereby  authorize NHDES  to  communicate all matters relative to  
this application electronically.  

SECTION  5 - AUTHORIZED AGENT  INFORMATION  (Env-Wt 311.04(c))  
N/A 

LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, M.I.: 

COMPANY NAME: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

TOWN/CITY: STATE: ZIP CODE: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

FAX: PHONE: 

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION:  By initialing here, I hereby  authorize NHDES  to  communicate all matters relative to  
this application  electronically.  

SECTION  6 - PROPERTY OWNER  INFORMATION  (IF DIFFERENT THAN APPLICANT)  (Env-Wt 311.04(b))  
     

Same as applicant 

NAME: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

TOWN/CITY: STATE: ZIP CODE: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

FAX: PHONE: 

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION:  By initialing here, I hereby  authorize NHDES  to  communicate all matters relative to  
this  application electronically.  

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095 

des.nh.gov 
2023-09 Page 3 of 7 

If the applicant is a trust or a company, then complete with the trust or company information. 

If the owner is a trust or a company, then complete with the trust or company information. 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
tel:6032712147
http://www.des.nh.gov/


 
 

  
 

 
 

    

     
       

       
    

     

    
  

     

NHDES-W-06-012 

SECTION  7 - RESOURCE-SPECIFIC CRITERIA ESTABLISHED IN  Env-Wt 400,  Env-Wt 500, Env-Wt 600, Env-Wt 700,  OR  
   

Describe how the resource-specific criteria have been  met  for each chapter listed above (please attach information  
about stream crossings,  coastal resources, prime  wetlands, or non-tidal wetlands and surface  waters):  
 

SECTION  8 - AVOIDANCE AND MINIMIZATION   

Practice Techniques For Avoidance and  Minimization  and the  Wetlands Permitting:  Avoidance, Minimization  and  
Mitigation  fact sheet.  For  minor or major projects,  a functional assessment  of all wetlands on  the project site is required  
(Env-Wt 311.03(b)(10)).*  
Please refer to  the application checklist  to ensure you  have attached all documents related to avoidance and  
minimization, as well as functional assessment (where  applicable).  Use the  Avoidance and Minimization Checklist,  the  
Avoidance and Minimization Narrative, or your  own  avoidance  and minimization  narrative.   

*See Env-Wt 311.03(b)(6) and Env-Wt 311.03(b)(10)  for  shoreline structure exemptions. 

Impacts within  wetland jurisdiction  must be  avoided to the maximum  extent  practicable (Env-Wt 313.03(a)).*  Any  
project with unavoidable  jurisdictional impacts must  then  be  minimized  as described in the  Wetlands Best Management 

SECTION  9 - MITIGATION  REQUIREMENT (Env-Wt  311.02)  
       

    

Mitigation Pre-Application Meeting  Date:  Month:  Day: Year:  

( N/A - Mitigation is not required) 

SECTION 10 - THE PROJECT MEETS COMPENSATORY MITIGATION REQUIREMENTS (Env-Wt 313.01(a)(1)c) 
Confirm that you have submitted a compensatory mitigation proposal that meets the requirements of Env-Wt 800 for 
all permanent unavoidable impacts that will remain after avoidance and minimization techniques have been exercised 
to the maximum extent practicable: I confirm submittal. 

( N/A – Compensatory mitigation is not required) 

SECTION 11 - IMPACT AREA (Env-Wt 311.04(g)) 
For each jurisdictional area that will be/has been impacted, provide square feet (SF) and, if applicable, linear feet (LF) 
of impact, and note whether the impact is after-the-fact (ATF; i.e., work was started or completed without a permit). 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095 

des.nh.gov 
2023-09 Page 4 of 7 

Env-Wt 900 HAVE BEEN MET (Env-Wt 313.01(a)(3)) 

If unavoidable jurisdictional impacts require mitigation, a mitigation pre-application meeting must occur at least 30 days 
but not more than 90 days prior to submitting this Standard Dredge and Fill Permit Application. 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
tel:6032712147
http://www.des.nh.gov/
https://www.dot.nh.gov/document/best-management-practices-routine-roadway-maintenance-activities-new-hampshire-2019
https://www.dot.nh.gov/document/best-management-practices-routine-roadway-maintenance-activities-new-hampshire-2019
https://www.des.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt341/files/documents/2020-01/wb-21.pdf
https://www.des.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt341/files/documents/2020-01/wb-21.pdf
https://onlineforms.nh.gov/?FormTag=nhdes-w-06-050
https://onlineforms.nh.gov/?FormTag=nhdes-w-06-089
https://www.des.nh.gov/water/wetlands/technical-assistance


 
 

  
 

 
 

     
  

   
    

   
  
 
   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

       
       

       
       

       
       

 
       

 

         
        

        
         
         

          
          
           

 

       
       

       
       

        
         

       
    

   
   

    
    

      
    
    

    
  

    

NHDES-W-06-012 

For intermittent and ephemeral streams, the linear footage of impact is measured along the thread of the channel. 
Please note, installation of a stream crossing in an ephemeral stream may be undertaken without a permit per Rule 
Env-Wt 309.02(d), however other dredge or fill impacts should be included below. 
For perennial streams/rivers, the linear footage of impact is calculated by summing the lengths of disturbances to the 
channel and banks. 
Permanent (PERM.) impacts are impacts that will remain after the project is complete (e.g., changes in grade or surface 
materials). 
Temporary (TEMP.) impacts are impacts not intended to remain (and will be restored to pre-construction conditions) 
after the project is completed. 

JURISDICTIONAL AREA PERM. 
SF 

PERM. 
LF 

PERM. 
ATF 

TEMP. 
SF 

TEMP. 
LF 

TEMP. 
ATF 

Forested Wetland 
Scrub-shrub Wetland 
Emergent Wetland ds

 
an Wet Meadow 

W
et

l

Vernal Pool 
Designated Prime Wetland 
Duly-established 100-foot Prime Wetland 
Buffer 
Intermittent / Ephemeral Stream 
Perennial Stream or River 

Su
rf

ac
e 

Lake / Pond 
Docking - Lake / Pond 
Docking - River 
Bank - Intermittent Stream 

Ba
nk

s

Bank - Perennial Stream / River 
Bank / Shoreline - Lake / Pond 
Tidal Waters 
Tidal Marsh 

Ti
da

l Sand Dune 
Undeveloped Tidal Buffer Zone (TBZ) 
Previously-developed TBZ 
Docking - Tidal Water 

TOTAL 
SECTION 12 - APPLICATION FEE (RSA 482-A:3, I) 

MINIMUM IMPACT FEE: Flat fee of $400. 
NON-ENFORCEMENT RELATED, PUBLICLY-FUNDED AND SUPERVISED RESTORATION PROJECTS, REGARDLESS OF 
IMPACT CLASSIFICATION: Flat fee of $400 (refer to RSA 482-A:3, 1(c) for restrictions). 
MINOR OR MAJOR IMPACT FEE: Calculate using the table below: 

Permanent and temporary (non-docking): SF × $0.40 = $ 
Seasonal docking structure:  SF × $2.00 = $ 

Permanent docking structure:  SF × $4.00 = $ 
Projects proposing shoreline structures (including docks) add $400 = $ 

Total = $ 

The application fee for minor or major impact is the above calculated total or $400, whichever is greater = $ 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302-0095 

des.nh.gov 
2023-09 Page 5 of 7 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
tel:6032712147
http://www.des.nh.gov/


10/31/24



NHDES-W-06-013 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 1 of 9 

STANDARD DREDGE AND FILL 
WETLANDS PERMIT APPLICATION 

ATTACHMENT A: MINOR AND MAJOR PROJECTS 
Water Division/Land Resources Management 

Wetlands Bureau 
Check the Status of your Application 

 
RSA/ Rule: RSA 482-A/ Env-Wt 311.10; Env-Wt 313.01(a)(1); Env-Wt 313.03 

APPLICANT’S NAME: RiverWoods Co. at Exeter TOWN NAME: Exeter 
Attachment A is required for all minor and major projects, and must be completed in addition to the Avoidance and 
Minimization Narrative or Checklist that is required by Env-Wt 307.11. 

For projects involving construction or modification of non-tidal shoreline structures over areas of surface waters having 
an absence of wetland vegetation, only Sections I.X through I.XV are required to be completed.  

 

PART I: AVOIDANCE AND MINIMIZATION 

In accordance with Env-Wt 313.03(a), the Department shall not approve any alteration of any jurisdictional area unless 
the applicant demonstrates that the potential impacts to jurisdictional areas have been avoided to the maximum 
extent practicable and that any unavoidable impacts have been minimized, as described in the Wetlands Best 
Management Practice Techniques For Avoidance and Minimization. 

SECTION I.I - ALTERNATIVES (Env-Wt 313.03(b)(1)) 
Describe how there is no practicable alternative that would have a less adverse impact on the area and environments 
under the Department’s jurisdiction. 

ALTHOUGH LARGE, THE RIVERWOODS PROPERTY IS ALMOST ENTIRELY CONSTRAINED BY EXISTING CONSERVATION 
EASEMENTS WHICH EXTEND UP TO THE LIMITS OF THE THREE CAMPUS AREAS.  THE CAMPUSES ARE ALSO COMPACT 
AND DENSELY DEVELOPED, RESULTING IN VERY LITTLE OPPORTUNITY FOR EXPANSION.  THE PROPOSED LOCATION FOR 
THE PROJECT IS CURRENTLY OCCUPIED BY A SMALL ADMINISTRATION BUILDING AND A MAINTENANCE AREA, BOTH OF 
WHICH CAN BE RELOCATED. THIS IS THE ONLY LOCATION ON THE PROPERTY WHERE THE PROJECT CAN BE 
CONSTRUCTED.  SEVERAL ADDITIONAL CONSTRAINTS AT THE PROPOSED LOCATION SIGNIFICANTLY LIMIT THE AREA 
WHICH CAN BE USED FOR THE PROJECT.   TOWN OF EXETER ZONING REQUIRES A 100-FOOT SETBACK FROM THE 
PROPERTY LINES PREVENTING FURTHER UTILIZATION OF UPLAND IN THE VICINITY.  THE APPLICANT WAS 
UNSUCCESSFUL IN OBTAINING A VARIANCE FROM THIS ZONING REQUIREMENT.  THE SECOND SIGNIFICANT 
CONSTRAINT IS THE PRESENCE OF A GAS TRANSMISSION MAIN. ONLY LIMITED AREAS OF PAVEMENT AND NO PART OF 
THE BUILDING CAN BE PLACED OVER THE GAS MAIN.   

THE GOAL OF THE PROJECT IS TO CONSOLIDATE THE HEALTHCARE SERVICES CURRENTLY SPREAD ACROSS THE THREE 
RIVERWOODS CAMPUSES INTO A STATE-OF-THE-ART FACILITY.  THE PROPOSED DESIGN MUST THEREFORE BE SIZED TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE EXISTING SERVICES AND BE DESIGNED TO MEET MODERN TECHNICAL STANDARDS FOR THIS TYPE 
OF FACILITY.  AS DESCRIBED ELSEWHERE IN THIS APPLICATION THE DESIGN INCORPORATES A NUMBER OF AVOIDANCE 
AND MINIMIZATION PRACTICES TO ACCOMPLISH THE PROJECT GOALS WITH AS LITTLE WETLAND IMPACT AS POSSIBLE.   
THEREFORE, DUE TO THE LACK OF ALTERNATIVE LOCATIONS ON THE PROPERTY, THE CONSTRAINTS PRESENT AT THE 
PROPOSED LOCATION, AND PROJECT DESIGN REQUIREMENTS, THERE IS NO PRACTICABLE ALTERNATIVE TO THE 
PROPOSED PROJECT WITH LESS WETLAND IMPACT. 
 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/
https://www4.des.state.nh.us/lrmonestop/
https://onlineforms.nh.gov/?FormTag=nhdes-w-06-089
https://onlineforms.nh.gov/?FormTag=nhdes-w-06-089
https://onlineforms.nh.gov/?FormTag=nhdes-w-06-050
http://neiwpcc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Wetlands-BMP-Manual-2019.pdf
http://neiwpcc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Wetlands-BMP-Manual-2019.pdf


NHDES-W-06-013 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 2 of 9 

SECTION I.II - MARSHES (Env-Wt 313.03(b)(2)) 
Describe how the project avoids and minimizes impacts to tidal marshes and non-tidal marshes where documented to 
provide sources of nutrients for finfish, crustacean, shellfish, and wildlife of significant value. 

There is no tidal or freshwater marsh in the project area. 

SECTION I.III - HYDROLOGIC CONNECTION (Env-Wt 313.03(b)(3)) 

Describe how the project maintains hydrologic connections between adjacent wetland or stream systems. 

There are no stream channels in the proposed impact areas.  The wetlands are connected by small culverts and drain 
west to east across the site.  This drainage pattern will be maintained in the drainage design by providing connection to 
the remaining wetland west of Impact Area #1 and directing flow, along with treated stormwater, east and 
downstream beyond Impact Area #4.  This will maintain hydrologic connections, current dranage pattern, and 
downstream flow. 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/


NHDES-W-06-013 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 3 of 9 

SECTION I.IV - JURISDICTIONAL IMPACTS (Env-Wt 313.03(b)(4)) 
Describe how the project avoids and minimizes impacts to wetlands and other areas of jurisdiction under RSA 482-A, 
especially those in which there are exemplary natural communities, vernal pools, protected species and habitat, 
documented fisheries, and habitat and reproduction areas for species of concern, or any combination thereof. 

As described in Section 1.1 of this form, there are no practicable alternatives to the proposed location for the project 
and alternative layouts are further limited by the site constraints and project design requirements.  The project area is 
largely developed or otherwise altered, and the wetlands in this area are generally of lower value in contrast to the 
extensive wetland systems elsewhere on the property.  There are no fisheries, exemplary natural communities, or 
vernal pools in the project area.  The location of the project therefore avoids potentially greater impacts to functions 
and values were the project to be constructed elsewhere.   The project includes a number of design elements to 
minimize impacts to wetlands and wetland function: 

The building has been designed with multiple stories and includes an underground parking garage within the building 
footprint.   

The stormwater management system makes use of under-pavement treatment and storage to limit the footprint of the 
development and the latest treatment technologies 

Structures and pavement associated with the former single family residence on the eastern side of the site will be 
removed and restored to meadow conditions thus revegetating wetland buffer areas 

A retaining wall has been used at Impact Area #4 to limit the impact that would be necessary for grading. 

SECTION I.V - PUBLIC COMMERCE, NAVIGATION, OR RECREATION (Env-Wt 313.03(b)(5)) 
Describe how the project avoids and minimizes impacts that eliminate, depreciate or obstruct public commerce, 
navigation, or recreation. 

The project will not impact navigable waters, nor will it directly involve elements of public commerce or recreation as 
they relate to wetland resource areas. 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/


NHDES-W-06-013 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 4 of 9 

SECTION I.VI - FLOODPLAIN WETLANDS (Env-Wt 313.03(b)(6)) 
Describe how the project avoids and minimizes impacts to floodplain wetlands that provide flood storage. 

The project will not impact the floodplain or floodplain wetlands 

SECTION I.VII - RIVERINE FORESTED WETLAND SYSTEMS AND SCRUB-SHRUB – MARSH COMPLEXES  
(Env-Wt 313.03(b)(7)) 
Describe how the project avoids and minimizes impacts to natural riverine forested wetland systems and scrub-shrub –
marsh complexes of high ecological integrity. 

There are no riverine forested wetland systems or scrub shrub marsh complexes associated with the site. 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/


NHDES-W-06-013 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 5 of 9 

SECTION I.VIII - DRINKING WATER SUPPLY AND GROUNDWATER AQUIFER LEVELS (Env-Wt 313.03(b)(8)) 
Describe how the project avoids and minimizes impacts to wetlands that would be detrimental to adjacent drinking 
water supply and groundwater aquifer levels. 

The project is not wihtin an aquifer area and the proposed impacts will not segment wetlands or disrupt flow paths 
such that groundwater may be affected.   Stornwater will be treated and infiltrated in accordance with AOT 
regulations.   

SECTION I.IX - STREAM CHANNELS (Env-Wt 313.03(b)(9)) 
Describe how the project avoids and minimizes adverse impacts to stream channels and the ability of such channels to 
handle runoff of waters. 

The project does not impact streams directly nor does it propose wetland crossings which could negatively affect 
stream channels outside the impact area.   The stormwater management system will ensure that runoff from the 
development does not adversely affect downstream flows. 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/


NHDES-W-06-013 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 6 of 9 

SECTION I.X - SHORELINE STRUCTURES - CONSTRUCTION SURFACE AREA (Env-Wt 313.03(c)(1)) 
Describe how the project has been designed to use the minimum construction surface area over surface waters 
necessary to meet the stated purpose of the structures. 

N/A, the project does not involve surface water or shoreline structures 

SECTION I.XI - SHORELINE STRUCTURES - LEAST INTRUSIVE UPON PUBLIC TRUST (Env-Wt 313.03(c)(2)) 
Describe how the type of construction proposed is the least intrusive upon the public trust that will ensure safe 
docking on the frontage. 

N/A, the project does not involve surface water or shoreline structures 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/


NHDES-W-06-013 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 7 of 9 

SECTION I.XII - SHORELINE STRUCTURES – ABUTTING PROPERTIES (Env-Wt 313.03(c)(3)) 
Describe how the structures have been designed to avoid and minimize impacts on ability of abutting owners to use 
and enjoy their properties. 

N/A, the project does not involve surface water or shoreline structures 

SECTION I.XIII - SHORELINE STRUCTURES – COMMERCE AND RECREATION (Env-Wt 313.03(c)(4)) 
Describe how the structures have been designed to avoid and minimize impacts to the public’s right to navigation, 
passage, and use of the resource for commerce and recreation. 

N/A, the project does not involve surface water or shoreline structures 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/


NHDES-W-06-013 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 8 of 9 

SECTION I.XIV - SHORELINE STRUCTURES – WATER QUALITY, AQUATIC VEGETATION, WILDLIFE AND FINFISH HABITAT 
(Env-Wt 313.03(c)(5)) 
Describe how the structures have been designed, located, and configured to avoid impacts to water quality, aquatic 
vegetation, and wildlife and finfish habitat. 

N/A, the project does not involve surface water or shoreline structures  

SECTION I.XV - SHORELINE STRUCTURES – VEGETATION REMOVAL, ACCESS POINTS, AND SHORELINE STABILITY (Env-
Wt 313.03(c)(6)) 
Describe how the structures have been designed to avoid and minimize the removal of vegetation, the number of 
access points through wetlands or over the bank, and activities that may have an adverse effect on shoreline stability. 

N/A, the project does not involve surface water or shoreline structures 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/


NHDES-W-06-013 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05 Page 9 of 9 

PART II: FUNCTIONAL ASSESSMENT 

REQUIREMENTS 
Ensure that project meets the requirements of Env-Wt 311.10 regarding functional assessment (Env-Wt 311.04(j);  
Env-Wt 311.10).  
FUNCTIONAL ASSESSMENT METHOD USED: 
ACOE Highway Methodology,  
(see attached Wetland Deleineation Report & Functional Assesment) 

NAME OF CERTIFIED WETLAND SCIENTIST (FOR NON-TIDAL PROJECTS) OR QUALIFIED COASTAL PROFESSIONAL (FOR 
TIDAL PROJECTS) WHO COMPLETED THE ASSESSMENT: BRENDAN QUIGLEY  

DATE OF ASSESSMENT: 10/17/24 

Check this box to confirm that the application includes a NARRATIVE ON FUNCTIONAL ASSESSMENT:  
 

For minor or major projects requiring a standard permit without mitigation, the applicant shall submit a wetland 
evaluation report that includes completed checklists and information demonstrating the RELATIVE FUNCTIONS AND 
VALUES OF EACH WETLAND EVALUATED. Check this box to confirm that the application includes this information, if 
applicable:  

 
 
Note: The Wetlands Functional Assessment worksheet can be used to compile the information needed to meet 
functional assessment requirements. 

 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/


NHDES-W-06-089 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05  Page 1 of 2 

AVOIDANCE AND MINIMIZATION 
WRITTEN NARRATIVE 

Water Division/Land Resources Management 
Wetlands Bureau 

Check the Status of your Application 

 
RSA/ Rule: RSA 482-A/ Env-Wt 311.04(j); Env-Wt 311.07; Env-Wt 313.01(a)(1)b; Env-Wt 313.01(c) 

APPLICANT’S NAME: RiverWoods Co. at Exeter  TOWN NAME: Exeter 

An applicant for a standard permit shall submit with the permit application a written narrative that explains how all 
impacts to functions and values of all jurisdictional areas have been avoided and minimized to the maximum extent 
practicable. This attachment can be used to guide the narrative (attach additional pages if needed). Alternatively, the 
applicant may attach a completed Avoidance and Minimization Checklist (NHDES-W-06-050) to the permit application. 

SECTION 1 - WATER ACCESS STRUCTURES (Env-Wt 311.07(b)(1)) 
Is the primary purpose of the proposed project to construct a water access structure? 

NO 

SECTION 2 - BUILDABLE LOT (Env-Wt 311.07(b)(1)) 
Does the proposed project require access through wetlands to reach a buildable lot or portion thereof? 

NO 

SECTION 3 - AVAILABLE PROPERTY (Env-Wt 311.07(b)(2))* 
For any project that proposes permanent impacts of more than one acre, or that proposes permanent impacts to a 
PRA, or both, are any other properties reasonably available to the applicant, whether already owned or controlled by 
the applicant or not, that could be used to achieve the project’s purpose without altering the functions and values of 
any jurisdictional area, in particular wetlands, streams, and PRAs? 
 
*Except as provided in any project-specific criteria and except for NH Department of Transportation projects that 
qualify for a categorical exclusion under the National Environmental Policy Act. 

N/A, Impacts are under 1 acre 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/
https://www4.des.state.nh.us/onestop/
https://onlineforms.nh.gov/?FormTag=nhdes-w-06-050


NHDES-W-06-089 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2020-05  Page 2 of 2 

SECTION 4 - ALTERNATIVES (Env-Wt 311.07(b)(3)) 
Could alternative designs or techniques, such as different layouts, different construction sequencing, or alternative 
technologies be used to avoid impacts to jurisdictional areas or their functions and values as described in the Wetlands 
Best Management Practice Techniques For Avoidance and Minimization?  

The lack of alternative locations and layout adjustment is documented in Section 1.1 of form “Attachment A”.  The 
project follows and incorporates the following principles of Avoidance and Minimization to minimize unavoidable 
impacts: 

An already developed and altered area is being utilized for the project 

The building includes multiple stories and underground parking within the building footprint 

The stormwater management system utilizes under-pavement treatment and storage 

The stormwater management system utilizes the latest technology including bio-retention basins and porous 
pavement 

A retaining wall is used at Impact Area #4 to minimize grading impact 

Currently developed upland areas in close proximity to wetlands which cannot be utilized for the project due to 
property line setbacks will be restored. 

SECTION 5 - CONFORMANCE WITH Env-Wt 311.10(c) (Env-Wt 311.07(b)(4))** 
How does the project conform to Env-Wt 311.10(c)?  
 
**Except for projects solely limited to construction or modification of non-tidal shoreline structures only need to 
complete relevant sections of Attachment A. 

The functional assessment indicates that the most valuable wetland in the project area is the wetland  which carries 
the flow of Scaman Brook under White Oak Drive and is connected to extensive wetland areas on each side of the road 
(Wetland E in functional assessment report). This wetland will not be impacted by the project.  Impact areas #1, #2, 
and #3, which constitute the majority of the proposed impact, are relatively low functioning wetlands largely isolated 
by and close to existing development. The wetland where Impact Area #4 is located is comparatively more valuable 
than the other three wetland because of its connectivity to larger contiguous wetland.  The impact at this location is 
very small at only 776 square feet. The proposed design therefore conforms to Env-Wt 311.10(c). 

A waiver has been requested from Env-Wt 306.05(a)(1) & 311.03(b)(10) relative to delineation and assessment of the 
rest of the wetlands on the 204 acre property.  This request is based on the fact that most of these wetlands are 
located in existing conservation easements which cannot be utilized for the project.  The extent of wetland in the 
existing conservation easement areas is well known however,  as is their value which is elevated by their protected 
status.  The wetlands evaluated in the project area are all lower value in comparison these large permanently 
protected wetland systems.  Therefore, even though the easement areas cannot be utilized, the project conforms to 
Env-Wt 311.10(c).    

 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/
http://neiwpcc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Wetlands-BMP-Manual-2019.pdf
http://neiwpcc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Wetlands-BMP-Manual-2019.pdf


NHDES-W-06-083 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2019-12-13 Page 1 of 4 

WETLANDS RULE WAIVER OR 
DWELLING OVER WATER WAIVER 

REQUEST FORM 
WATER DIVISION/LAND RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 

WETLANDS BUREAU 
 

RSA/Rule: RSA 482-A/ Env-Wt 204 

A person may request a waiver to requirements in Rules Env-Wt 100-900 to accommodate situations where strict 
adherence to the requirements would not be in the best interests of the public or the environment. A person may also 
request a waiver of standard for existing dwellings over water pursuant to RSA 482-A:26, III (b).  

SECTION 1 - PROJECT LOCATION INFORMATION (Env-Wt 204.03(c)) 

ADDRESS: 5 White Oak Drive TOWN/CITY: Exeter STATE: NH ZIP CODE: 03833 

TAX MAP/LOT NUMBER: Map 97 Lot 23 

SECTION 2 - WAIVER REQUESTOR INFORMATION (Env-Wt 204.03(a)) 

LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, M.I.:  Quigley, Brebndan--Gove Environmental Services Inc 

MAILING ADDRESS: 8 Continental Drive, Bldg 2, Unit H 

TOWN/CITY: Exeter STATE:  
NH ZIP CODE: 03833 

EMAIL ADDRESS (if available): bquigley@gesinc.biz 
or if not FAX NUMBER:        

DAYTIME TELEPHONE NUMBER: 603-778-
0644 

SECTION 3 - APPLICANT INFORMATION (Env-Wt 204.03(b)) 
If request is being made on behalf of someone else, include the following information regarding the person being 
represented. If requestor is the applicant, check the following box and proceed to Section 4. 

 Requestor is the applicant. 

LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, M.I.: RiverWoods Company at Exeter c/oJustine Vogel  

MAILING ADDRESS: 7 White Oak Drive 

TOWN/CITY: Exeter STATE: NH ZIP CODE: 03833 

EMAIL ADDRESS (if available): jvogel@trwg.org  
or if not FAX NUMBER:        

DAYTIME PHONE NUMBER: 603.658.3005 

 

Administrative 
Use 
Only 

Administrative 
Use 
Only 

Administrative 
Use 
Only 

File No.: 

Check No.: 

Amount: 

Initials: 

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/


NHDES-W-06-083 
 

lrm@des.nh.gov or (603) 271-2147 
NHDES Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH  03302-0095 

www.des.nh.gov 
2019-12-13 Page 2 of 4 

SECTION 4 - WAIVER INFORMATION 

SECTION 4A - WAIVER TO RULE Env-Wt 100-900 
 N/A - If you are not requesting a rule waiver, check this box and proceed to Section 4b 

Provide the number of the specific section of each rule for which a waiver is sought (Env-Wt 204.03(d)):  
Env-Wt 306.05(a)(1) & 311.03(b)(10)  

Provide a complete explanation of why a waiver is being requested, including an explanation of the operational and 
economic consequences of complying with the requirement and, if the requested waiver would extend the duration of 
a permit, the reason(s) why the permit holder was not able to complete the project within the specified time (Env-Wt 
204.03(f)(1)):  

The applicant is seeking relief from 306.05(a)(1) regarding the complete delineation of jurisdictional areas on the 
subject property. The proposed project is located on less than 5 acres of single approximately 205 acre lot containing 
the three RiverWoods supportive living campuses.  The campus living areas are compact and densely developed with 
the remainder of the property, totaling over 127 acres, being subject to formal conservation easements (see attached 
figure).  The proposed location on White Oak Drive is therefore the only feasible location for the project.  The 
requirement to delineate and survey wetlands in the campus areas and within the conservation easements, neither of 
which can be utilized, would cause significant financial burden and project delay. The applicant is also seeking relief 
from 311.10 regarding the functional assessment of all the wetlands on the property for the same reasons.  Granting 
the waivers will not result in a permit extension. 
If applicable, provide a complete explanation of the alternative that is proposed to be substituted for the requirement 
in Env-Wt, including written documentation or data, or both, to support the alternative (Env-Wt 204.03(g)):  

The wetlands in the project area have been delineated, surveyed, and assessed in accordance with the relevant rules.  
As an alternative to delineating and assessing all the wetlands on the property the applicant proposes the use of record 
delineation information and documentation of the restricted easement areas. 

SECTION 4B – DWELLING OVER WATERS WAIVER UNDER RSA 482-A:26, III(b).  
 N/A - If you are not requesting a standard waiver, check this box and proceed to Section 5) 

Identify the specific standard to which a waiver is being requested (Env-Wt 204.03(e)):  
RSA 482-A:       

mailto:lrm@des.nh.gov
http://www.des.nh.gov/




Brendan Quigley, Gove Env. Srvs 10/31/24



 

 

 

 

 

Figures 

 







9,028

6,4941:

WPPT

Legend

Notes

Map Scale

© NH GRANIT, www.granit.unh.edu
Map Generated: 10/15/2024

NH Parcels
Additional Lines
City/Town
Designated Rivers with a quarter mile buffer

Ammonoosuc

Ashuelot

Cocheco

Cold

Connecticut

Contoocook

Exeter

Isinglass

Lamprey

Little

Mascoma

Merrimack-Lower

Merrimack-Upper

Middle Branch Piscataquog

North

North Branch Contoocook

North Branch Lamprey

North Branch Piscataquog

Oyster

Pawtuckaway

Pemigewasset

Piscassic

Piscataquog

Saco

Souhegan

South Branch Piscataquog

Squamscott

Swift

Warner

West Branch Warner

Prime Wetlands
Prime Wetlands with 100 ft Buffer
Peatland
Tidal Wetland

Brackish Marsh

High Marsh Mix

High Marsh, J. gerardii

High Marsh, S.patens / D.spicata

Low Marsh

Mudflat

Open Water

Panne

Phragmites australis

Pool

Recently Flooded Forest

Short form S. alterniflora





 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

Impact Area Photos 



bquigley
Callout
PHOTO 1

bquigley
Callout
PHOTO 2

bquigley
Callout
PHOTO 3

bquigley
Callout
PHOTO 4

bquigley
Callout
PHOTO 5

bquigley
Callout
PHOTO 6

bquigley
Text Box
IPACT AREA PHOTO LOCATIONS



 Wetland Impact Photos 
Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 1—Wetland A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 2—Trail between Wetlands A and B (A to right, B to the left) 

 



 Wetland Impact Photos 
Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 3—Wetland B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 4—Driveway between Wetlands C and D (C to right, D to the left) 

 



 Wetland Impact Photos 
Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 5—Wetland C 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 6—Wetland D 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B 

Abutter Information 



DIRECT ABUTTER LIST WITHIN ¼ MILE OF PROPOSED PROJECT 
 
SITE: 
 
  Map-Lot  Owner 

 
97-23 Riverwoods Company at Exeter 

7 Riverwoods Drive 
Exeter, NH 03833 

 
ABUTTERS: 
 
Map-Lot  Owner 

 
98-39 Dennis & Cheryl Hayward, Trustees 

9 Pickpocket Road  
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-41 Southeast Land Trust 
247 North River Road 
Epping, NH 03042 
 

97-45 Ruth Hooten, Trustee 
Ruth Hooten Revocable Trust 
61 Kingston Road 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

80-6 Marshall Farms Crossing Condominium 
163 Main Street, Suite 201 
Salem, NH 03079 
 

97-20 James & Virginia Harnett 
13 Cullen Way 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-21 Shivan Sarna 
David Desrosiers 
11 Cullen Way 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-22 Christopher & Courtney Benevides 
9 Cullen Way 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

  



97-24 Town of Exeter 
10 Front Street 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-25 Glenn Theodore 
5 Riverwoods Drive 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-26 Susan & Daniel Sarmiento 
Sarmiento Family Trust  
3 Riverwoods Drive 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-27 Portland Natural Gas 
c/o Duff & Phelps 
PO Box 2629 
Addison, TX 75001 
 

97-28 Grant & Carol Murray 
74 Kingston Road 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-30 Joseph & Marlene Fitzpatrick 
82 Kingston Road 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-31 Altie Bird, Trustee 
Altie Bird Rev. Trust 
84 Kingston Road 
Exeter, NH 03833 

 
97-32 Lauren Drinker 

88 Kingston Road 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-33 Christian Burns 
90 Kingston Road 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

97-34 Keely Rose McElwain 
92 Kingston Road 
Exeter, NH 03833 
 

 



<<DATE>> 
 
«Name» 
«Street» 
«TownStateZip» 
 
Re: RiverWoods Exeter 
 5 White Oak Drive 

Exeter, NH  
 
Dear Abutter: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to inform you that the RiverWoods Company at Exeter has submitted 
a Dredge and Fill Application to the NH Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) for 
19,464 square feet of wetland impact associated with the construction of a Supportive Living 
Health Center at 5 White Oak Drive in Exeter, NH.  After filing, a copy of the final application, 
including plans, will be made available for your review at the Exeter Town Hall and at the NH 
Department of Environmental Services Wetlands Bureau, 29 Hazen Drive, in Concord. 
 
If you have any questions that we might be able to answer, please feel free to contact our office. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Brendan Quigley, CWS 
Gove Environmental Services, Inc. 
 
 













 

 

 

 

Attachment C 

Wetland Delineation & Assessment Report 

 



  
GOVE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC 

 
 

WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT & FUNCTIONAL ASSESSMENT 
 

Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 
 5 White Oak Drive 

Exeter, NH 
October 17, 2024 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
This wetland report is being submitted in connection with the proposed development of a Supportive Living 
Health Center at 5 White Oak Drive on the Riverwoods campus in Exeter, NH.  The following sections 
provide an overview of the delineation process and description of the identified wetland resources 
associated with the property.  The report also includes a function assessment of the wetlands and 
discussion of their value relative to one another.  A figure showing the different areas discussed in this 
report and the functional assessment data forms have been attached following the text. 
 
2.0 WETLAND DELINEATION 
Resource areas on this property were delineated in January of 2023 by Brendan Quigley, NHCWS #249 
utilizing the following standards: 
 

1. Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Northcentral and 
Northeast Region, (Version 2.0) January 2012, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 

2. Field Indicators of Hydric Soils in the United States, A Guide for Identifying and Delineating 
Hydric Soils, Version 8.2. United States Department of Agriculture (2018). 

3. New England Hydric Soils Technical Committee. 2019 Version 4, Field Indicators for Identifying 
Hydric Soils in New England. New England Interstate Water Pollution Control Commission, 
Lowell, MA. 

4. National Wetland Plant List, Version 3.2 (2016). 
 
Wetland boundaries were surveyed by James Vera & Associates, Inc. and are depicted on the plans submitted 
separately with the Dredge & Fill Application.  For the purpose of discussion, the identified wetland areas and 
have been given unique designations as depicted on the attached figure.  Six (6) areas of wetland were 
identified in the project area: 
 
Wetlands A, B, & C  
 
These three areas consist of three small pockets of wetland in close proximity to the existing administration 
building, White Oak Drive, and related developed areas.  They are largely isolated from one another but are 
connected via small culverts and drain east to Wetland D and ultimately Scamen Brook.  All three areas are 
predominantly forested wetland dominated by red maple, and sensitive fern but are densely vegetated with 
invasive woody species such as common and glossy buckthorn, oriental bittersweet, bush honeysuckle, and 
autumn olive.  Generally, this type of growth is characteristic of long fallow fields and areas around old farms 
 
Wetland D 
 
Wetland D is very similar to Wetlands A through C but differs in that it forested is also densely vegetated with 
invasive woody species, and is located in close proximity to development. It differs however, because it is a 



Wetland Delineation Report and Supporting Information  
 Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 October 17, 2024—Page 2 
 

 

 

narrow extension of the larger wetland system associated with Scamen Brook, located mostly off-site to the 
east (Wetland E2) and is therefore more broadly connected to other wetlands. 
 
Wetland E1 & E2 
Wetland E constitutes the headwaters of Scamen Brook.  The main body of the wetland on the site (E1) is a 
more natural forested wetland dominated by red maple.  A portion of this wetland is supported by hillside seep 
hydrology and extends up the hill south of the wetland and toward the proposed project.  The wetland drains 
east and under White Oak Drive through pair of 18” culverts where it emerges as Wetland E2.  This small area 
of the wetland is somewhat disturbed, most likely from the construction of the gas line which runs below the 
wetland and by the crossing of White Oak Drive.  It continues off-site to a larger forest and scrub shrub 
wetland through which Scaman Brook flows in a southeast direction. 
 
 
4.0 FUNCTION &VALUE ASSESSMENT 
 
A wetland function and value assessment was conducted using the US Army Corps Highway 
Methodology guidelines.  Functions are self-sustaining properties of wetlands, which exist in the absence 
of human involvement.  Values refers to the benefits gained by society from a given wetland or ecosystem 
and their inherent functions.  Functions and values identified as “primary” have been determined to be 
significant features of the wetland being evaluated.  An important distinction is that the primary functions 
and values of a particular wetland does not necessarily indicate the wetland supports them at a significant 
level in comparison to other wetlands in the region or even near the site.   
 
The Highway Methodology considers 13 functions and values: 
 
1. Groundwater recharge/discharge:  This function considers the potential for a wetland to serve as a 

groundwater recharge and/or discharge area.  Recharge should relate to the potential for the wetland 
to contribute water to an aquifer.  Discharge should relate to the potential for the wetland to serve as 
an area where ground water can be discharged to the surface.   

2. Floodflow Alteration:  This function considers the effectiveness of the wetland in reducing flood 
damage by attenuation of floodwaters for prolonged periods following precipitation events.  

3. Fish and Shellfish Habitat:  This function considers the effectiveness of seasonal or permanent 
water bodies associated with the wetland in question for fish and shellfish habitat.  

4. Sediment/Toxicant/Pathogen Retention:  This function reduces or prevents degradation of water 
quality.  It relates to the effectiveness of the wetland as a trap for sediments, toxicants or pathogens. 

5. Nutrient Removal/Retention/Transformation:  This function relates to the effectiveness of the 
wetland to prevent adverse effects of excess nutrients entering aquifers or surface waters such as 
ponds, lakes, streams, rivers or estuaries. 

6. Production Export:  This function relates to the effectiveness of the wetland to produce food or 
usable products for human, or other living organisms. 

7. Sediment/Shoreline Stabilization: This function relates to the effectiveness of a wetland to stabilize 
stream banks and shorelines against erosion. 

8. Wildlife Habitat: This function considers the effectiveness of the wetland to provide habitat for 
various types and populations of animals typically associated with wetlands and the wetland edge.  
Both resident and or migrating species must be considered.  

9. Recreation: This value considers the effectiveness of the wetland and associated watercourses to 
provide recreational opportunities such as canoeing, boating, fishing, hunting and other active or 



Wetland Delineation Report and Supporting Information  
 Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 October 17, 2024—Page 3 
 

 
 

8 Continental Dr Unit H, Exeter, NH 03833-7507 
Ph (603) 778 0644 / Fax (603) 778 0654 

www.gesinc.biz 
info@gesinc.biz 

passive recreational activities. Consumptive opportunities consume or diminish the plants, animals or 
other resources that are intrinsic to the wetland, whereas non-consumptive opportunities do not.  

10. Educational/Scientific Value: This value considers the effectiveness of the wetland as a site for an 
“outdoor classroom” or as a location for scientific study or research.  

11. Uniqueness/Heritage: This value relates to the effectiveness of the wetland or its associated water 
bodies to produce certain special values.  Special values may include such things as archeological 
sites, unusual aesthetic quality, historical events, or unique plants, animals, or geological features.  

12. Visual Quality/Aesthetics: This value relates to the visual and aesthetic qualities of the wetland. 
13. Threatened or Endangered Species Habitat: This value relates to the effectiveness of the wetland 

or associated water bodies to support threatened or endangered species. 
 
The functions and values identified in the wetlands are described in the following sections.  
 
Wetlands A, B, C 
The principal functions of these three wetlands were determined to be Sediment/Toxicant/Pathogen 
Retention and Flood flow Alteration.  The water quality and flood flow alteration functions are supported 
due to their location upstream of Scamen Brook and their restricted flow path. This restricted flow is 
mainly the result of segmentation but does enable treatment and flood attenuation by storing runoff and 
slowly releasing it downstream.  These functions are supported at a modest level due to the overall small 
size of the wetlands and limited development within their watershed.  These wetlands also support general 
Wildlife Habitat, mostly by way of dense cover favored by small mammals.  Since these wetlands lack 
surface hydrology they do not support wetland specific wildlife habitat and this has only been considered 
a secondary function.  The proximity of development also greatly limits their habitat value overall.   
 
Wetland D 
The principal functions of Wetland D determined were to be Sediment/Toxicant/Pathogen Retention and 
Wildlife Habitat. The wildlife habitat value of the wetland is higher than Areas A-C owing to its direct 
connection to the larger wetland system associated with Scaman Brook and wetland specific wildlife 
habitat.  The water quality functions are supported by dense vegetation and convoluted flow path but not 
by flow restriction as in is the case in Wetlands A-C.  The unimpeded flow also reduces the storage 
capacity and therefore the flood attenuation function in this area.  
 
Wetland E 
 
Sediment/Toxicant/Pathogen Retention, Nutrient Transformation, and Wildlife Habitat were determined 
to be the principal functions of Wetland E.  These are derived from its more significant surface 
hydrology, closer association with Scamen Brook, and connectivity to larger forested wetland habitat to 
the west.   These attributes enhance the wildlife and Water quality function of the wetland in comparison 
to wetlands A, B, C, & D.  Flood flow alteration was not considered a function of Wetland E since very 
little storage capacity was noted.  Groundwater discharge has also been considered as a secondary 
function as evidenced by the hillside seep along its southern slope.    
 
 
 
 



Wetland Delineation Report and Supporting Information  
 Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

 5 White Oak Drive 
Exeter, NH 

 October 17, 2024—Page 4 
 

 

 

5.0 RELATIVE FUNCTION & VALUE OF THE WETLANDS 
 
As a conclusion to this report this section provides a discussion of the functional significance of the 
wetlands relative to one another.  The primary purpose of this comparison is to support project design 
decisions and to satisfy permit requirements relative to avoidance and minimization of wetland impacts 
proposed by the project. 

Wetlands E1 and E2 stand out as the most valuable wetlands on the site because of their direct association 
with Scaman Brook and more natural character overall.  Since these and other wetlands immediately 
upstream constitute the headwaters of Scaman Brook they have the greatest potential to influence 
conditions in the waterway such as water quality and flooding.  Despite the crossing of White Oak Drive, 
the quality of wetland habitat support in the wetland is significantly better than Wetlands A through D.   

Wetlands D is the next most valuable wetland.  This area supports important water quality functions 
upstream of Scaman Brook and comparatively greater wildlife habitat than Wetlands A through C 
because of its unrestricted connection to a larger wetland system. 

Wetlands A through C are the least valuable wetlands areas on the site.  Although these areas also drain 
toward Scaman Brook and support both water quality and flood attenuation function Their habitat value is 
limited by the fact that is largely not wetland specific and also surrounded by developed or maintained 
land.  Flood attenuation function is also enabled by segmentation and restricted flow which is otherwise a 
limiting factor for wetland function.   

 
This concludes the wetland delineation report for this site.  If I can be of further assistance, please feel 
free to contact me at (603) 778-0644. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
   

 
Brendan Quigley, NHCWS 
Gove Environmental Services, Inc. 
  
Enc: Wetland Areas Sketch 

Functional Assessment Forms 
 











 

 

 

 

Attachment D  

ACOE Supplemental Information 

(Secondary Impacts Checklist, SHPO Inquiry, IPaC Report) 



60 

Appendix B 
New Hampshire General Permits 

Required Information and USACE Section 404Checklist 

USACE Section 404 Checklist 

1. Attach any explanations to this checklist. Lack of information could delay a USACE permit determination.
2. All references to “work” include all work associated with the project construction and operation. Work

includes filling, clearing, flooding, draining, excavation, dozing, stumping, etc.
3. See GC 3 for information on single and complete projects.
4. Contact USACE at (978) 318-8832 with any questions.
5. The information requested below is generally required in the NHDES Wetland Application. See page 61 for

NHDES references and Admin Rules as they relate to the information below.
1. Impaired Waters Yes No 
1.1 Will any work occur within 1 mile upstream in the watershed of an impaired water? See the 
following to determine if there is an impaired water in the vicinity of your work area. * 
https://nhdes-surface-water-quality-assessment-site-nhdes.hub.arcgis.com/ 
https://www.des.nh.gov/water/rivers-and-lakes/water-quality-assessment 
https://www4.des.state.nh.us/onestopdatamapper/onestopmapper.aspx 

2. Wetlands Yes No 
2.1 Are there are streams, brooks, rivers, ponds, or lakes within 200 feet of any proposed work? 
2.2 Are there proposed impacts to tidal SAS, prime wetlands, or priority resource areas? 
Applicants may obtain information from the NH Department of Resources and Economic 
Development Natural Heritage Bureau (NHB) DataCheck Tool for information about resources 
located on the property at https://www4.des.state.nh.us/NHB-DataCheck/.  

2.3 If wetland crossings are proposed, are they adequately designed to maintain hydrology, 
sediment transport & wildlife passage? 
2.4 Would the project remove part or all of a riparian buffer? (Riparian buffers are lands adjacent 
to streams where vegetation is strongly influenced by the presence of water. They are often thin 
lines of vegetation containing native grasses, flowers, shrubs and/or trees that line the stream 
banks. They are also called vegetated buffer zones.) 
2.5 The overall project site is more than 40 acres? 
2.6 What is the area of the previously filled wetlands? 
2.7 What is the area of the proposed fill in wetlands? 
2.8 What % of the overall project sire will be previously and proposed filled wetlands? 
3. Wildlife Yes No 
3.1 Has the NHB & USFWS determined that there are known occurrences of rare species, 
exemplary natural communities, Federal and State threatened and endangered species and 
habitat, in the vicinity of the proposed project? (All projects require an NHB ID number & a 
USFWS IPAC determination.) NHB DataCheck Tool: https://www4.des.state.nh.us/NHB-
DataCheck/. USFWS IPAC website: https://ipac.ecosphere.fws.gov/ 

X

X

X

X
UNK
19380SF

0.2%

X

X

NO Crossings 

https://www4.des.state.nh.us/onestopdatamapper/onestopmapper.aspx
https://www4.des.state.nh.us/NHB-DataCheck/
https://www4.des.state.nh.us/NHB-DataCheck/
https://www4.des.state.nh.us/NHB-DataCheck/


61 

3.2 Would work occur in any area identified as either “Highest Ranked Habitat in N.H.” or “Highest 
Ranked Habitat in Ecological Region”? (These areas are colored magenta and green, 
respectively, on NH Fish and Game’s map, “2010 Highest Ranked Wildlife Habitat by Ecological 
Condition.”) Map information can be found at: 
• PDF: https://wildlife.state.nh.us/wildlife/wap-high-rank.html.
• Data Mapper: www.granit.unh.edu.
• GIS: www.granit.unh.edu/data/downloadfreedata/category/databycategory.html.

 

3.3 Would the project impact more than 20 acres of an undeveloped land block (upland, 
wetland/waterway) on the entire project site and/or on an adjoining property(s)? 
3.4 Does the project propose more than a 10-lot residential subdivision, or a commercial or 
industrial development? 
3.5 Are stream crossings designed in accordance with the GC 31? 
4. Flooding/Floodplain Values Yes No 
4.1 Is the proposed project within the 100-year floodplain of an adjacent river or stream? 
4.2 If 4.1 is yes, will compensatory flood storage be provided if the project results in a loss of 
flood storage? 
5. Historic/Archaeological Resources

For a minimum, minor or major impact project - a copy of the RPR Form 
(www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review) with your DES file number shall be sent to the NH Division of 
Historical Resources as required on Page 37 GC 14(d) of the GP document** 
6. Minimal Impact Determination (for projects that exceed 1 acre of permanent impact)  Yes   No 

 Projects with greater than 1 acre of permanent impact must include the following: 

• Provide additional information and description for how the below criteria are met.
6.1 Will there be complete loss of aquatic resources on site? 
6.2 Have the impacts to the aquatic resources been avoided and minimized to the greatest 
extent practicable? 
6.3 Will all aquatic resource function be lost? 
6.4 Does the aquatic resource (s) have regional significance (watershed or ecoregion)? 

  6.5 Is there an on-site alternative with less impact? 
6.6 Is there an off-site alternative with less impact? 

  6.7 Will there be a loss to a resource dependent species? 
6.8 Are indirect impacts greater than 1 acre within and adjacent to the project area? 
6.9 Does the proposed mitigation replace aquatic resource function for direct, indirect, and 
cumulative impacts? 

*Although this checklist utilizes state information, its submittal to USACE is a federal requirement.
** If your project is not within Federal jurisdiction, coordination with NH DHR is not required under Federal law.

X

X

n/a, no stream crossings

X

X

• Functional assessment for aquatic resources in the project area.
• On and off-site alternative analysis.

https://wildlife.state.nh.us/wildlife/wap-high-rank.html
http://www.granit.unh.edu/
http://www.granit.unh.edu/data/downloadfreedata/category/databycategory.html
http://www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review
bquigley
Text Box
Heath care facility



New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources / State Historic Preservation Office 
April 2023 

 

Please mail the completed form and required material to: 

New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources 
State Historic Preservation Office 
Attention: Review & Compliance 
172 Pembroke Road, Concord, NH 03301 

Request for Project Review by the 
New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources 

 This is a new submittal  
 This is additional information relating to DHR Review & Compliance (R&C) #: 

This form is updated periodically. Please download the current form at www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review. Please refer to 
the Request for Project Review Instructions for direction on completing this form. Submit one copy of this project 
review form for each project for which review is requested. Please include a self-addressed stamped envelope. 
Project submissions will not be accepted via facsimile or e-mail. This form is required. Review request form must 
be complete for review to begin. Incomplete forms will be sent back to the applicant without comment. Please be 
aware that this form may only initiate consultation. For some projects, additional information will be needed to 
complete the Section 106 review. All items and supporting documentation submitted with a review request, 
including photographs and publications, will be retained by the DHR as part of its review records. Items to be kept 
confidential should be clearly identified. For questions regarding the DHR review process and the DHR’s role in it, 
please visit our website at: www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review or contact the R&C Specialist at 
marika.s.labash@dncr.nh.gov. 

DHR Use Only 

R&C #    _______________ 

Log In Date      ____ / ____ / ____ 

Response Date ____ / ____ / ____ 

Sent Date    ____ / ____ / ____ 

GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Title  Riverwoods Supportive Living Health Center 

Project Location 5 White Oak Dive 

City/Town  Exeter                           Tax Map 97       Lot # 23 

NH State Plane - Feet Geographic Coordinates:      Easting 1166948   Northing 17985  
(See RPR Instructions and R&C FAQs for guidance.) 

Lead Federal Agency and Contact (if applicable) ACOE 
(Agency providing funds, licenses, or permits)  

 Permit Type and Permit or Job Reference # NH GP 

State Agency and Contact (if applicable) NHDES 

 Permit Type and Permit or Job Reference # Dredge & Fill 
APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Applicant Name RiverWoods Company at Exeter c/o Justine Vogel     

Mailing Address 7 White Oak Drive    Phone Number 603-585-3005 

City Exeter        State NH      Zip 03833     Email jvogel@trwg.org 

CONTACT PERSON TO RECEIVE RESPONSE 

Name/Company Brendan Quigley / Gove Environmental Services      

Mailing Address 8 Continental Dr., Bldg 2, Unit H        Phone Number 6035804112 

City Exeter         State NH         Zip 03833        Email bquigley@gesinc.biz 

http://www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review
http://www.nh.gov/nhdhr/review
mailto:marika.s.labash@dncr.nh.gov


 

New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources / State Historic Preservation Office 
April 2023 

 

PROJECTS CANNOT BE PROCESSED WITHOUT THIS INFORMATION 

Project Boundaries and Description 
 

 Attach the Project Mapping using EMMIT or relevant portion of a 7.5’ USGS Map. (See RPR 
Instructions and R&C FAQs for guidance.) 

 Attach a detailed narrative description of the proposed project. 
 Attach a site plan. The site plan should include the project boundaries and areas of proposed excavation. 
 Attach photos of the project area (overview of project location and area adjacent to project location, and 

specific areas of proposed impacts and disturbances.) (Informative photo captions are requested.) 
 A DHR records search must be conducted to identify properties within or adjacent to the project area. 

 Provide records search results via EMMIT or in Table 1. (Blank table forms are available on the DHR 
website.) Please note, using EMMIT Guest View for an RPR records search does not provide the 
necessary information needed for DHR review.  

 EMMIT or in-house records search conducted on 10/22/2024. 
 
Architecture 
 
Are there any buildings, structures (bridges, walls, culverts, etc.) objects, districts or landscapes within the 

project area?    Yes  No  
If no, skip to Archaeology section. If yes, submit all of the following information:  

 
Approximate age(s): built 2011 & 1987 (see demo plan) 
 

 Photographs of each resource or streetscape located within the project area, with captions, along with 
a mapped photo key. (Digital photographs are accepted. All photographs must be clear, crisp and 
focused.) 

 If the project involves rehabilitation, demolition, additions, or alterations to existing buildings or 
structures, provide additional photographs showing detailed project work locations. (i.e. Detail photo of 
windows if window replacement is proposed.) 
 

Archaeology 
 
Does the proposed undertaking involve ground-disturbing activity?    Yes  No  
 If yes, submit all of the following information: 
 

 Description of current and previous land use and disturbances. 
 Available information concerning known or suspected archaeological resources within the project area 

(such as cellar holes, wells, foundations, dams, etc.) 
 

Please note that for many projects an architectural and/or archaeological survey or other 
additional information may be needed to complete the Section 106 process. 

DHR Comment/Finding Recommendation   This Space for Division of Historical Resources Use Only 

 
 Insufficient information to initiate review.      Additional information is needed in order to complete 

review. 
 

 No Potential to cause Effects     No Historic Properties Affected     No Adverse Effect     Adverse Effect 
 

Comments:____________________________________________________________________________________________   
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
If plans change or resources are discovered in the course of this project, you must contact the Division of 
Historical Resources as required by federal law and regulation. 
 
Authorized Signature: _______________________________________________________  Date: ___________________ 

 



 

 

 

 

Attachment E 

New Hampshire Natural Heritage Inquiry 

 



The NH Natural Heritage database has been checked for records of rare species and exemplary natural
communities near the area mapped below. The species considered include those listed as Threatened or
Endangered by either the state of New Hampshire or the federal government. We currently have no recorded
occurrences for sensitive species near this project area.

 
A negative result (no record in our database) does not mean that a sensitive species is not present. Our data
can only tell you of known occurrences, based on information gathered by qualified biologists and reported to
our office. However, many areas have never been surveyed, or have only been surveyed for certain species.
An on-site survey would provide better information on what species and communities are indeed present.

 
Based on the information submitted, no further consultation with the NH Fish and Game Department
pursuant to Fis 1004 is required.

New Hampshire Natural Heritage Bureau
NHB DataCheck Results Letter

To: Brenden Walden
8 Continental Drive Bldg 2 Unit H
Exeter, NH  03833

From: NH Natural Heritage Bureau

Date: 9/24/2024  (This letter is valid through 9/24/2025)

Re: Review by NH Natural Heritage Bureau of request dated 9/24/2024

Permit Types: General Permit
Alteration of Terrain Permit
Standard Dredge & Fill - Minimum; or Expedited

NHB ID: NHB24-2924

Applicant: Brenden Walden

Location: Exeter
Tax Map: 97, Tax Lot: 23
Address: 5 White Oak Drive

Proj. Description: The proposed project involves the consolidating of three existing senior care units
into one new building with over 100,000 SF of disturbance. proposed development
also includes the addition of 141 parking spaces and the redevelopment of White
Oak Road.

Department of Natural and Cultural Resources DNCR/NHB
Division of Forests and Lands 172 Pembroke Rd.
(603) 271-2214     fax: 271-6488 Concord NH  03301



New Hampshire Natural Heritage Bureau
NHB DataCheck Results Letter

MAP OF PROJECT BOUNDARIES FOR:  NHB24-2924

Department of Natural and Cultural Resources DNCR/NHB
Division of Forests and Lands 172 Pembroke Rd.
(603) 271-2214     fax: 271-6488 Concord NH  03301



 

 

 

 

Attachment F 

Plans (under separate cover) 



1 
 

Exeter Conservation Commission 1 
October 8, 2024 2 

Novak Room 3 
10 Front Street 4 

7:00 PM 5 
Draft Minutes 6 

 7 
Call to Order 8 

 9 
1.  Introduction of Members Present (by Roll Call)  10 
 11 
Present at tonight’s meeting were by roll call, Chair Dave Short, Andrew Koff, Trevor Mattera, Keith 12 
Whitehouse, Valorie Fanger, Alternate Kyle Welch, Alternate Michele Crepeau, Alternate Bill Campbell, 13 
Alternate Don Clement (remotely) and Select Board Representative Dan Chartrand. 14 
 15 
Staff Present: Kristen Murphy, Conservation and Sustainability Planner 16 
 17 
Chair Short called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and introduced the members.  Alternates Michele 18 
Crepeau and Kyle Welch were activated. 19 
 20 
2.  Public Comment 21 
 22 
Action Items 23 
 24 
1.  Review of State Wetland Dredge and Fill and State Shoreland Permit applications from Foss Motors 25 
for a proposed Vehicle Storage Area at Tax Map 52, Lot 112.2 (Brendan Quigley) 26 
 27 
Chair Short read out loud the Public Hearing Notice.  He noted the applicant appeared previously but the 28 
Commission did not approve the Conditional Use Permits and indicated that to the Planning Board.  Mr. 29 
Madison attended the Planning Board meeting on behalf of the Commission.  The building which was 30 
previously proposed was taken away and the Planning Board felt the new plan satisfied the criteria. 31 
 32 
Brendan Quigley of Gove Environmental presented the application which he noted was summarized by 33 
Chair Short.  Mr. Koff noted he was not present in August and asked if the parking lot design had 34 
changed to pervious, and Mr. Quigley indicated yes, with minor changes he pointed to on the plan, with 35 
underdrains for treatment.  He noted there were small areas with regular pavement.  He noted 3,327 SF 36 
of total impact and pointed to those areas on the plan.  He noted Wheelwright Creek was not on the 37 
State’s list of Shoreland protected water bodies but the Reservoir is.  He noted the 150’ buffer is barely 38 
impacted with 91% of vegetation and 1.5% of the lot in the shoreland and engineered stormwater 39 
treatment.  He noted the total area of the lot is 115,813 SF and the proposed disturbance is 31,000 SF 40 
including the areas being graded and not paved and includes road disturbance.  He calculated 1,804 SF 41 
of impervious surface. 42 
 43 



2 
 

Mr. Mattera noted that the plan has gone back and forth a few times and he appreciates the work that 44 
has gone into the design changes and removal of some of the sticking points.  He stated that he 45 
commended the design we ended up with. 46 
 47 
MOTION:  Chair Short motioned that the Commission has no objection to the state dredge and fill 48 
application as proposed.  Mr. Mattera seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the 49 
motion passed 7-0-0. 50 
 51 
MOTION:  Chair Short motioned that the Commission has no objection to the Shoreland application as 52 
proposed and will send a memo to the state.  Mr. Mattera seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all 53 
were in favor, the motion passed 7-0-0. 54 
 55 
2.  Major Impact Standard Dredge and Fill Wetland Permit Application for 28,418 SF of permanent 56 
wetland impact and 7,636 SF of temporary wetland impact for Dade Auto Holdings at 146 Portsmouth 57 
Ave. for a commercial auto dealership located at Tax Map 51-3-4 (Cindy Balcius, SRE, Inc.) 58 
 59 
Chair Short read out loud the Public Hearing Notice. 60 
 61 
Cindy Balcius of SRE, Inc. presented the application on behalf of Dade Auto Holdings.  She noted that 62 
they appeared on 12/13/22 with rough draft plans for the new building next to Exeter Volvo with 34,520 63 
SF of permanent impact at the time and did a pre-application with the state wetland’s bureau and 64 
looked for mitigation.  She showed the existing conditions plan and referenced the site walk tonight, 65 
highest observable tideline and prime wetlands, 100’ buffer, 100’ tidal buffer (state setbacks) and 250’ 66 
DES shoreland.  She noted the plan stayed away from the higher functioning wetlands and Parkman 67 
Brook.  She noted 28,418 SF of permanent impact and 7,636 SF of temporary.  Ms. Balcius explained the 68 
process of surcharging for the structural support of the new building.  She noted the revised project 69 
avoids future high tides.  She noted the stormwater treatment system for full development was 70 
designed to meet town regulations and were reviewed by Ms. Murphy and the project engineer who are 71 
working on that now.  An AoT application will be done.  She noted the owner likes the $220,000 in lieu 72 
fee.  She noted more information was requested from the state concerning flagging prime wetlands. 73 
 74 
Ms. Fanger asked about the shoreland boundary being worked out not.  Ms. Balcius indicated the state 75 
was aware they are still working out the local shoreland impacts but the local shoreland is not on the 76 
state plan.  Ms. Murphy indicated there were concerns about the deadline expiring before the memo 77 
from the Commission was sent.  Chair Short noted that the state responded that the Commission’s 78 
questions be answered. 79 
 80 
Ms. Fangor asked about underground petroleum tanks and Ms. Balcius indicated there was not any 81 
planned to her knowledge. 82 
 83 
Mr. Koff asked who was on the site walk and Chair Short indicated himself, Mr. Whitehouse, Ms. 84 
Crepeau and Ms. Murphy. 85 
 86 



3 
 

Mr. Fangor indicated the big fill was concerning and asked about the temporary fill for surcharging.  Ms. 87 
Balcius explained fill would be there one growing season then the black cloth would be removed.  Ms. 88 
Murphy asked for confirmation the engineering firm concurred 1-3 years.  Ms. Balcius stated that they 89 
are mandated to that. As an example if put in in December it doesn’t have to be removed until October 90 
of the following year.  She indicated that she did not know where the fill was coming from but there are 91 
specifications. 92 
 93 
Ms. Fangor asked about the back land possibly becoming conservation and Ms. Balcius indicated the 94 
owner was considering that.  Mr. Mattera noted avoiding the area modeled for marsh migration lends a 95 
chunk of value to the area behind it. 96 
 97 
Ms. Murphy read some of the questions submitted by Conor Madison.  He questioned the estimated 98 
time for dewatering, and asked about stormwater controls and exposed soil during the dewatering.  Ms. 99 
Balcius indicated she will have a plan showing stormwater at that process and can have an engineer 100 
answer his questions.  She indicated an example of use of Geotech fabric for temporary impact is at the 101 
Rochester industrial park.  Ms. Balcius showed the delineations on the first page and noted flood plain 102 
wetlands are not out there. 103 
 104 
Ms. Murphy noted that Mr. Madison asked about a tidal application with sea level rise and the retaining 105 
wall or removing the wall.  Ms. Balcius noted the site elevation and current drainage level of Exeter 106 
Volvo and the commercial district around it.  She noted that retaining walls, from an avoidance and 107 
minimization standpoint, minimize impacts.  She noted that they don’t get permits for future changes.  108 
The project is being kept to the front of the parcel and away from higher functioning areas.  Ms. Balcius 109 
noted the dealership has requirements for parking and access.  There is an anticipated timeline for local 110 
applications, and she will know more when they get together next week.  Ms. Murphy noted he had 111 
concerns with the retaining wall being directly linked to the tidal area. 112 
 113 
Chair Short asked about the underground treatment area and Ms. Balcius noted there would be a 114 
chamber. 115 
 116 
Ms. Fangor agreed that the size of the project was pretty big, and it would be nice to nail down the 117 
possibility of conservation land.  Ms. Balcius will ask the owner tomorrow. 118 
 119 
Ms. Murphy stated that the timeline for the state review expires the day before next meeting and the 120 
Commission could address it tonight or schedule another meeting.  The request for information is due 121 
November 11th.  Ms. Balcius indicated she would ask the state for an extension of a couple days.  122 
 123 
Mr. Whitehouse asked about the deepest fill.  Select Board Representative Chartrand said the height of 124 
the retaining wall is 23.5 feet and shared concerns with the large amount of fill and recommended the 125 
Commission weigh in with the state on that concern.  He noted there is a lot of development on 126 
Portsmouth Ave and a lot of wetlands, three applications have been seen now and another is coming.  127 
Ms. Balcius clarified there is quite a lot of upland on this property, but development is being pushed up 128 
front.  He noted impacts are being seen. 129 
 130 



4 

With both this and the Volvo dealership owned by the same party, Ms. Murphy asked about shifting 131 
impact to the existing Volvo dealership and about whether parking can be placed under structures. Ms. 132 
Balcius noted the required amount of parking and size of the building are drivers of that, but she can ask 133 
the engineer if it could be shifted more. 134 

135 
Ms. Murphy noted the rules changed a couple of years ago and now applicants can go straight to in lieu 136 
fees.  Ms. Murphy said with $200,000 in lieu fees, has  the owner considered local mitigation and she 137 
asked about the Pickpocket Dam removal project being considered.  Ms. Balcius indicated mitigation has 138 
to be shovel ready.  Ms. Murphy noted the feasibility study is available on the town’s website.  Mr. 139 
Chartrand noted that the removal of the dam is on the town ballot for March.  Ms. Balcius indicated she 140 
would check with the owner and Seta (from mitigation). 141 

142 
Ms. Crepeau pointed out this building is double the size of the Volvo dealership and asked if the building 143 
could be two stories to reduce the footprint. She noted concerns with the size of the project, the 144 
application of three dealerships.  Ms. Balcius noted the building is too small right now. 145 

146 
Mr. Koff agreed there was a large impact to a sensitive area with parking along the whole back.  He 147 
asked about eliminating 8-10’ to reduce the height of the wall.  He indicated that a 23’ wall would have 148 
impacts like shading and a lot of reasons, and he feels like this is too much.  The upland is not being 149 
utilized.  Ms. Balcius responded by asking the Commission to imagine the retaining wall gone, then there 150 
would be a 2:1 slope.  Walls are frequently used to minimize impact.  Chair Short asked at what point 151 
the wall would go in.  Ms. Balcius indicated there would be sheet piling with surcharging so it would be 152 
when the temporary fill is pulled out.  Chair Short asked why sheet piling wall couldn’t be the permanent 153 
wall.  Ms. Balcius indicated the Geotech advisor should answer that.  Ms. Murphy noted the clay soil had 154 
to be compressed.  Chair Short noted the sheet piling goes deeper.  Ms. Crepeau asked about tiers and 155 
Ms. Balcius noted there would be more wetland impact. 156 

157 
Mr. Mattera expressed concerns with the amount of wetland being filled for this development plan and 158 
noted he was having a hard time with that.  He noted benefits to not splitting the wetland system and 159 
the avoiding of the area for future of marsh migration.  He asked if there was any chance of failure with 160 
the walls.  The amount of fill if it would become fluid it would have impacts.  Ms. Balcius noted it is 161 
designed to avoid that, and human disturbance has multiplied the impact, and this project will intercept 162 
and treat stormwater. 163 

164 
Ms. Murphy encouraged having the stormwater details, before local permits are filed, for the duration 165 
of the surcharging phase.  Ms. Balcius will submit that. 166 

167 
Ms. Murphy questioned 20’ plus fill for a year is really a temporary impact. Ms. Balcius indicated she has 168 
examples of this from Rochester. 169 

170 
Ms. Murphy asked Ms. Balcius to bring details of the Rochester example. 171 

172 



5 
 

Ms. Murphy noted that the sea level rise model shows water coming in from Parkman Brook under 173 
current scenarios of mean high, high water and yet the application only addresses water movement in 174 
from Portsmouth Avenue. Mr. Whitehouse indicated there was evidence onsite of this flooding. 175 
 176 
Chair Short indicated the applicant will get answers and come back next month.  Ms. Balcius will ask for 177 
an extension and copy Ms. Murphy.  Ms. Murphy will send the state a note about the extension. 178 
 179 
MOTION:  Ms. Fangor motioned to send communication to the state telling them the applicant has 180 
requested a two-day extension and will review the application at the next Conservation Commission 181 
meeting in November.  Mr. Koff seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion 182 
passed 7-0-0. 183 
 184 
 185 
3.  Committee Reports 186 
 187 

a.  Property Management 188 
 189 

i. 10/25 McDonnell Gate Operation Proposed Seasonal End Date 190 
 191 
Ms. Murphy noted volunteers will stop opening and closing the McDonnell gate on October 25th 192 
to end the season. 193 
 194 
MOTION:  Chair Short motioned to close the McDonnell gate on October 25th.  Ms. Crepeau 195 
seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion passed 7-0-0. 196 

 197 
ii. Raynes Farm Updates 198 

 199 
Ms. Murphy reported that LGT Restoration have finalized work on the west and north 200 
side.  She provided pictures earlier.  Steve Bedard is making progress but will need an 201 
extension to do the east side clapboard next year and the extension will be approved by 202 
the Commission, Board of Directors, L-CHIP and Town Manager Russ Dean.  She noted 203 
outstanding items were the fire detection system, and staircase which would be 204 
deferred.  Mr. Chartrand explained that Mr. Dean will submit the warrant article to the 205 
Budget Recommendations Committee and the Select Board to move forward to the 206 
voters.  Ms. Murphy will have Jeff Beck look at the request and consider if there are 207 
other electric issues needed to bundle with the fire suppression system work. 208 
 209 
Chair Short noted it is worthwhile to give Mr. Bedard an extension because his portion 210 
of the work is highly specialized. 211 
 212 
MOTION:  Chair Short motioned to grant an extension to Mr. Bedard until next year.  213 
Mr. Whitehouse seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion 214 
passed 7-0-0. 215 
 216 



6 
 

 iii.  Potential Raynes Fall Event 217 
 218 

Mr. Whitehouse indicated he would like to see an event at Raynes and noted additional 219 
parking is needed.  He recommended cleaning up along the wall, tree trimming and 220 
cutting stumps and to keep up around the immediate area of the barn. 221 
 222 
Mr. Whitehouse noted he spoke to Amanda Kelly and is organizing volunteer projects 223 
around town, working on a list with Ms. Murphy and Parks & Recreation.  Chair Short 224 
noted there could be some value in keeping track of what’s been accomplished and by 225 
who. 226 

 227 
  228 



7 
 

b. Outreach Events 229 
 230 

i.  Hike Exeter Challenge – Kyle Welch 231 
 232 
Mr. Welch reported that Ms. Murphy had the stickers printed and there will be a description 233 
and parking information next week. 234 

 235 
c. Other Committee Reports (River Study, Sustainability, Energy/CPAC, Tree, CC Roundtable) 236 

i.  Seacoast Green Challenge 237 

Ms. Murphy noted the competition with neighboring towns to see which community has the 238 
most residents using the higher renewable content in their Community Power subscription 239 
would run through January.  She encouraged residents to opt up to a higher percentage. 240 

ii.  Ms. Murphy noted the River Study is talking about fees and analysis.  Chair Short asked about 241 
the Commission providing a recommendation and Mr. Chartrand indicated that the 242 
recommendation would be timely once it goes on the warrant article. 243 

iii.  Ms. Murphy noted the Energy Committee is working on Window Dressers. 244 

iv.  Ms. Murphy noted the Sustainability Committee is working on Styrofoam recycling.  She 245 
noted there is a large increase in the waste management contract. 246 

 247 
4.  Approval of Minutes September 10, 2024 Meeting - Tabled 248 
 249 
5.  Correspondence 250 
 251 
Other Business 252 
 253 
Next Meeting:  11/12/24, Submission Deadline 11/1/24 254 
 255 
6.  Adjournment 256 
 257 
 Chair Short adjourned the meeting at 8:41 PM. 258 
 259 
Respectfully submitted, 260 

Daniel Hoijer, Recording Secretary 261 
Via Exeter TV 262 
Webinar ID 878 3898 8356 263 



E x e t e r  S u s t a i n a b i l i t y  A d v i s o r y  C o m m i t t e e  p r e s e n t s  

COMPOST ING
PUMPK IN

N O V E M B E R  1 0 T H ,  2 0 2 4  @  9 - 1 1 A M
2 6  W A T E R  S T  E X E T E R ,  N H  0 3 8 3 3

O V E R  1  B I L L I O N  P O U N D S  O F  P U M P K I N S  A R E  A D D E D  T O
L A N D F I L L S  E A C H  Y E A R  W H E R E  T H E Y  P R O D U C E  M E T H A N E ,

A  H A R M F U L  G R E E N H O U S E  G A S .  D O  Y O U R  P A R T  B Y
C O M P O S T I N G  Y O U R  P U M P K I N S !

I F  Y OU ' R E  UNABLE  TO  JO I N  U S ,  P L EASEI F  YOU ' R E  UNABLE  TO  JO I N  U S ,  P L EASEI F  YOU ' R E  UNABLE  TO  JO I N  U S ,  P L EASE
REMEMBER  THAT  THE  E X E T ER  T RANSFER  S TA T I ONREMEMBER  THAT  THE  E X E T ER  T RANSFER  S TA T I ONREMEMBER  THAT  THE  E X E T ER  T RANSFER  S TA T I ON

HAS  F R E E  COMPOST I NG  FOR  R E S I D ENTSHAS  F R E E  COMPOST I NG  FOR  R E S I D ENTSHAS  F R E E  COMPOST I NG  FOR  R E S I D ENTS       



events



RAYNES FARM

FIRESIDE SUNRISE
6 1  N E W F I E L D S  R O A D ,  E X E T E R ,  N H

SATURDAY  NOV   23   AT   6:30 AM 

T H E  E X E T E R  C O N S E R V A T I O N  C O M M I S S I O N  P R E S E N T S :

P H O T O  C O U R T E S Y  O F  B E V E R L Y  W H I T E H O U S E

DRAFT



*
* 

Brought to you by the Exeter Energy Committee & 
Window Dressers, a non-profit organization 

-  ·

·

·

· 

Inserts are custommeasured by our team in your home
Some financial support is available to offset costs. Inserts
are built by participants and community volunteers.
Community build January 2025 

For more info and to sign up: 
WindowDressers 
Info and Ordering: 
207-596-3073 
www.windowdressers.org

Exeter Coordinators: 
windowdressers@exeternh.gov


	5015.06-Drainage-091024
	5015.01a-Cover-TOC
	5015.01c-Dividers
	5015.02a-USGS
	5015.02b-Aerial
	5015.05-Rainfall
	5015.06a-NRCS
	Cover
	Preface
	Contents
	Soil Map
	Soil Map
	Legend
	Map Unit Legend
	Map Unit Descriptions
	Rockingham County, New Hampshire
	26B—Windsor loamy sand, 3 to 8 percent slopes
	32B—Boxford silt loam, 3 to 8 percent slopes
	32C—Boxford silt loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes
	33A—Scitico silt loam, 0 to 5 percent slopes
	63C—Charlton fine sandy loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes, very stony
	313A—Deerfield loamy fine sand, 0 to 3 percent slopes




	5015.06b-SSSS
	SOIL REPORT 2024
	Draft soils

	5015.06c-Geotech
	1.0 INTRODUCTION
	1.1 Scope and Purpose
	1.2 Site and Proposed Construction

	2.0 EXPLORATION AND TESTING
	2.1 Explorations
	2.2 Testing

	3.0 SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS
	3.1 Soil and Bedrock
	3.2 Groundwater

	4.0 EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATIONS
	4.1 Foundation and Floor Slab Considerations
	4.2 Excavation and Dewatering Considerations
	4.3 Soil Re-use
	4.4 Recommendations for Additional Study

	5.0 CLOSURE
	23-1662 Sheet 1 - ELP.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ELP



	5015.07aa-WQV-Bio1
	5015.07ab-Storage-Bio1
	5015.07ac-Discharge-Bio1
	5015.07ba-WQV-Bio2
	5015.07bb-Storage-Bio2
	5015.07bc-Discharge-Bio2
	5015.07ca-WQV-ST1
	5015.07cb-Storage-ST1
	5015.07cc-Discharge-ST1
	5015.07d-WQV-Porous1
	5015.07e-WQV-Porous2
	5015.07f-GRV
	5015.08a-MaintenanceManual
	5015.08b-IsolatorRow-OM
	5015.08c-InspectionForm
	5015.08c-Plan
	5015.03-Pre.pdf
	pre2
	pre10
	pre25
	pre50

	5015.04-Post.pdf
	post2
	post10
	post25
	post50


	5015.07-PlanSet-091024
	5015-SITE COVER (1)
	5015-ExCond-24x36
	5015-SITE DEMO (1)
	5015-SITE SITE (1)
	5015-SITE TRUCKS (1)
	5015-SITE Profile (1)
	5015-SITE Profile (2) (1)
	5015-SITE Grading (1)
	5015-SITE Erosion (1)
	5015-SITE Utlity (1)
	5015-SITE Lighting (1)
	5015-SITE CUP (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 1 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 2 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 3 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 4 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 5 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 6 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 7 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 8 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 9 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 10 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 11 (1)
	5015-Landscape-Color
	5015-Elevations
	5015-Perspective
	Sheets
	A30 - FRONT ENTRY



	5015-APP-Site-091024-ForPrint
	5015.00a-Cover-TOC
	5015.00b-Dividers
	5015.01a-LTR-Cover-091024
	5015.01b-APP-Site-091024
	5015.01c-APP-CUP-091024
	5015.01e-ZoningReview
	5015.01f-APP-WaterSewer-091024
	5015.01g-AbuttersList
	5015.02-LOA-Signed
	5015.03-Deeds
	Lot Merger
	Amended Cons Ease 5083-0644
	Conservation Easement Deed Bk 6323 Pg 405
	Easement Deed RW to Murray Recorded B 6525 P 1686
	Gas Line Easement Bk 1369 Pg 283

	5015.04a-USGS
	5015.04b-Aerial
	5015.04c-GIS
	5015.04d-FIRM
	5015.05a-TransportationPlan
	5015.05b-TransportationMap

	5015.01f-FunctionsValues.pdf
	Wetland Delineation
	RelaTION to the proposed development

	Riverwoods Dredge and Fill_FOR PRINT_103124.pdf
	Major Impact
	Dredge & Fill Application
	For
	RiverWoods Exeter
	Supportive Living Health Center
	5 White Oak Drive
	Exeter, NH
	October 2024
	Wetland-FV Report.pdf
	Wetland Delineation Report & Functional Assessment
	1.0 Introduction
	2.0 Wetland Delineation
	4.0 Function &Value Assessment
	5.0 Relative FUNCTION & value of the wetlands


	5015.02-PlanSet-102324.pdf
	5015-Arch
	5015-Perspective.pdf
	Sheets
	A30 - FRONT ENTRY



	5015-ExCond-24x36
	5015-L1
	5015-SITE COVER (1)
	5015-SITE CUP (1)
	5015-SITE DEMO (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 1 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 2 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 3 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 4 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 5 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 6 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 7 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 8 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 9 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 10 (1)
	5015-SITE DETAIL 11 (1)
	5015-SITE Erosion (1)
	5015-SITE Grading (1)
	5015-SITE Lighting (1)
	5015-SITE OVERALL (1)
	5015-SITE Profile (1)
	5015-SITE Profile (2) (1)
	5015-SITE Sewer Profile (1)
	5015-SITE SITE (1)
	5015-SITE TRUCKS (1)
	5015-SITE Utlity (1)
	5015-SITE-072224
	5105-Existing-24x36
	5015-Arch.pdf
	5015-Perspective.pdf
	Sheets
	A30 - FRONT ENTRY


	2024_1010_Health Center_24x36 Plans.pdf
	Sheets
	A01 - PROJECT SITE
	A02 - LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
	A03 - FIRST FLOOR PLAN
	A04 - SECOND FLOOR PLAN
	A05 - THIRD FLOOR PLAN
	A06 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	A07 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS




	2024_10-31_Riverwoods_TRC_Kmurphy.pdf
	Date:  October 31, 2024


	Town Name: Exeter
	Applicant Name: Meniscus Financial Holdings, LLC 
	Has the required planning been completed?: Yes
	Does the project qualify for an Impact Classification Adjustment (e: 
	g: 
	 NH Fish and Game Department (NHFG) and NHB agreement for a classification downgrade) or a Project-Type Exception (e: 
	g: 
	 Maintenance or Statutory Permit-by-Notification (SPN) project)?: No




	Does the property contain a PRA? If yes, provide the following information: Choice2
	Protected species or habitat?: No
	Species or Habitat Name(s): 
	NHB Project ID Number: 
	Bog?: No
	Floodplain wetland contiguous to a tier 3 or higher watercourse?: No
	Designated prime wetland or duly-established 100-foot buffer?: No
	Sand dune, tidal wetland, tidal water, or undeveloped tidal buffer zone?: No
	Is the property within a Designated River corridor?: Choice1
	Name of Local River Management Advisory Committee: 
	Month: 
	Day: 
	Year: 
	List contaminant: 
	Watershed Size: no crossings
	Provide a description of the project and the purpose of the project, the need for the proposed impacts to jurisdictional areas, an outline of the scope of work to be performed, and whether impacts are temporary or permanent: The project involves construction of a new three story, ±51,874 sf footprint healthcare facility to serve the RiverWoods continuing care retirement community.  The project will be serviced by municipal water and sewer, paved access ways and parking areas, an underground parking garage, utilities and stormwater treatment measures.  The intent is to consolidate the existing healthcare components currently located on the three RiverWoods campuses into a new, state of the art, purpose built facility. A total of 19,380 square feet of wetland impact is proposed to construct the project. An additional 84 square feet of temporary impact is necessary to remove rip-rap and restore a small area of wetland associated with a culvert which is being removed.  
	ADDRESS: 5 White Oak Drive
	TOWNCITY: Exeter
	TAX MAPBLOCKLOTUNIT: 97/23
	US GEOLOGICAL SURVEY USGS TOPO MAP WATERBODY NAME NA: 
	Not Applicable: On
	Optional LATITUDELONGITUDE in decimal degrees to five decimal places: 
	For dredging projects, is the subject property contaminated?: Choice1
	Is there potential to impact impaired waters, class A waters, or outstanding resource waters?: No
	NAME: RiverWoods Company at Exeter c/o Justine Vogel
	MAILING ADDRESS: 7 White Oak Drive
	TOWNCITY_2: Exeter
	STATE: NH
	ZIP CODE: 03833
	EMAIL ADDRESS: jvogel@trwg.org
	FAX: 
	PHONE: 603.658.3005
	Not applicable no agent: Off
	LAST NAME FIRST NAME MI: Quigley, Brendan
	COMPANY NAME: Gove Environmental Services, Inc
	MAILING ADDRESS_2: 8 Continental Drive Bldg 2 Unit H
	TOWNCITY_3: Exeter
	STATE_2: NH
	ZIP CODE_2: 03833
	EMAIL ADDRESS_2: bquigley@gesinc.biz
	FAX_2: 
	PHONE_2: 603-686-0086
	Same as applicant: On
	NAME_2: 
	MAILING ADDRESS_3: 
	TOWNCITY_4: 
	STATE_3: 
	ZIP CODE_3: 
	EMAIL ADDRESS_3: 
	FAX_3: 
	PHONE_3: 
	not applicable, mitigation not required: Off
	Confirm Submittal: On
	not applicable, compensatory mitigation not required: Off
	Describe how the resourcespecific criteria have been met for each chapter listed above please attach information about stream crossings coastal resources prime wetlands or nontidal wetlands and surface waters: Env-Wt 400: The boundary of the wetland was delineated by Gove Environmental Services utilizing the criteria specified in Env-Wt 406.01Env-Wt 500: The project meets project specific design requirements for commercial/industrial/residential development in Env-Wt 524.04 (a) through (f) as follows:a. The project does not involve stream crossings and no other resource specific requirements apply.b. All proposed stormwater management facilities are located in upland areas.  The project does not use wetlands or surface waters to   serve as stormwater treatment.c. The project will advance protection of water resources by updating stormwater management in full compliance with current State of NH  and Town of Exeter regulations.d.    The proposed impacts are are located in wetlands that are largely isolated and connected to downstream areas only by small culverts.  The drainage pattern from wetland to remain along the western edge of the project area to downstream areas east of the project will be maintained within the stormwater management system.   The impacts will not therefore alter hydrologic connections such that wetland or riparian functions will be impaired. e. There is no fish habitat associated with the site.  Drainage patterns will not be altered in a way that would impact downstream areas.f.  The proposed impacts occur to a largely isolated wetlands located in former agricultural field and a small impact to edge of a larger off-site wetland extending into the developed project area.  There is little if any wetland-dependent wildlife habitat in these areas.   Wetland dependent wildlife habitat and associated migratory pathways will therefore not be disrupted.Env-Wt 600: There are no coastal resources associated with the SiteEnv-Wt 700: There is no Prime Wetland associated with the SiteEnv-Wt 900:  No stream crossings are proposed
	Preapp text: Requested 9/4/24 and declined 9/20/24 due to proposed ARM mitigation
	PERM SFForested Wetland: 19,380
	PERM LFForested Wetland: 
	PERM ATF Forested Wetland: 
	TEMP SF Forested Wetland: 
	TEMP LF Forested Wetland: 
	Temp ATF Forested Wetland: 
	PERM SFScrubshrub Wetland: 
	PERM LFScrubshrub Wetland: 
	PERM ATF Scrub-shrub Wetland: 
	TEMP SF_2: 
	TEMP LF_2: 
	Temp ATF Scrub-shrub Wetland: 
	PERM SFEmergent Wetland: 
	PERM LFEmergent Wetland: 
	PERM ATF Emergent Wetland: 
	TEMP SF_3: 
	TEMP LF_3: 
	Temp: 
	 ATF Emergent Wetland: 

	PERM SFWet Meadow: 
	PERM LFWet Meadow: 84
	PERM ATF Wet Meadow: 
	TEMP SF_4: 
	TEMP LF_4: 
	TEMP ATF Wet Meadow: 
	PERM SFVernal Pool: 
	PERM LFVernal Pool: 
	PERM ATF Vernal Pool: 
	TEMP SF_5: 
	TEMP LF_5: 
	TEMP ATF Vernal Pool: 
	PERM SFDesignated Prime Wetland: 
	PERM LFDesignated Prime Wetland: 
	PERM ATF Designated Prime Wetland: 
	TEMP SF_6: 
	TEMP LF_6: 
	TEMP ATF Designated Prime Wetland: 
	PERM SFDulyestablished 100foot Prime Wetland Buffer: 
	PERM LFDulyestablished 100foot Prime Wetland Buffer: 
	PERM ATF Buffer: 
	TEMP SF_7: 
	TEMP LF_7: 
	TEMP ATF Buffer: 
	PERM SFIntermittent  Ephemeral Stream: 
	PERM LFIntermittent  Ephemeral Stream: 
	PERM ATF Intermittent or Ephemeral Stream: 
	TEMP SF_8: 
	TEMP LF_8: 
	TEMP ATF Intermittent or Ephemeral Stream: 
	PERM SFPerennial Stream or River: 
	PERM LFPerennial Stream or River: 
	PERM ATF Perennial Stream or River: 
	TEMP SF_9: 
	TEMP LF_9: 
	TEMP ATF Perennial Stream or River: 
	PERM SFLake  Pond: 
	PERM LFLake  Pond: 
	PERM ATF Lake or Pond: 
	TEMP SF_10: 
	TEMP LF_10: 
	TEMP ATF Lake or Pond: 
	PERM SFDocking Lake  Pond: 
	PERM LFDocking Lake  Pond: 
	TEMP ATF Lake or Pond Docking: 
	TEMP SF_11: 
	TEMP LF_11: 
	PERM ATF Lake or Pond Docking: 
	PERM SFDocking River: 
	PERM LFDocking River: 
	PERM ATF River Docking: 
	TEMP SF_12: 
	TEMP LF_12: 
	TEMP ATF River Docking: 
	PERM SFBank Intermittent Stream: 
	PERM LFBank Intermittent Stream: 
	PERM ATF Intermittent Stream Bank: 
	TEMP SF_13: 
	TEMP LF_13: 
	TEMP ATF Intermittent Stream Bank: 
	PERM SFBank Perennial Stream  River: 
	PERM LFBank Perennial Stream  River: 
	PERM ATF Perennial Stream or River Bank: 
	TEMP SF_14: 
	TEMP LF_14: 
	TEMP ATF Perennial Stream or River Bank: 
	PERM SFBank  Shoreline Lake  Pond: 
	PERM LFBank  Shoreline Lake  Pond: 
	PERM ATF Lake or Pond Bank or Shoreline: 
	TEMP SF_15: 
	TEMP LF_15: 
	TEMP ATF Lake or Pond Bank or Shoreline: 
	PERM SFTidal Waters: 
	PERM LFTidal Waters: 
	PERM ATF Tidal Waters: 
	TEMP SF_16: 
	TEMP LF_16: 
	TEMP ATF Tidal Waters: 
	PERM SFTidal Marsh: 
	PERM LFTidal Marsh: 
	PERM ATF Tidal Marsh: 
	TEMP SF_17: 
	TEMP LF_17: 
	TEMP ATF Tidal Marsh: 
	PERM SFSand Dune: 
	PERM LFSand Dune: 
	PERM ATF Sand Dune: 
	TEMP SF_18: 
	TEMP LF_18: 
	TEMP ATF Sand Dune: 
	PERM SFUndeveloped Tidal Buffer Zone TBZ: 
	PERM LFUndeveloped Tidal Buffer Zone TBZ: 
	PERM ATF Undeveloped Tidal Buffer Zone: 
	TEMP SF_19: 
	TEMP LF_19: 
	TEMP ATF Undeveloped Tidal Buffer Zone: 
	PERM SFPreviouslydeveloped TBZ: 
	PERM LFPreviouslydeveloped TBZ: 
	PERM ATF Previously-developed Tidal Buffer Zone: 
	TEMP SF_20: 
	TEMP LF_20: 
	TEMP ATF Previously-developed Tidal Buffer Zone: 
	PERM SFDocking Tidal Water: 
	PERM LFDocking Tidal Water: 
	PERM ATF Tidal Water Docking: 
	TEMP SF_21: 
	TEMP LF_21: 
	TEMP ATF Tidal Water Docking: 
	PERM SFTOTAL: 19,380
	PERM LFTOTAL: 84
	TEMP SFTOTAL: 
	TEMP LFTOTAL: 
	Minimum Impact Fee: Off
	NONENFORCEMENT RELATED PUBLICLYFUNDED AND SUPERVISED RESTORATION PROJECTS REGARDLESS OF: Off
	Minor or Major Impact Fee: On
	Square Feet 1: 19,464
	Fee Calculation 1: 7,785.60
	Square Feet 2: 
	Fee Calculation 2: 
	Square Feet 3: 
	Fee Calculation 3: 
	Fee Calculation 4: 
	Fee Calculation Total 1-4: 7,785.60
	Fee Calculation Total or 400 Dollars whichever is greater: 7,785.60


